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Corporate Governance

The Group strives to achieve high standards of corporate governance and has followed CG-1 “Corporate Governance of Locally

Incorporated Authorised Institutions” of the Supervisory Policy Manual issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority during the year.

Board of Directors and the Management

The Board is responsible for setting objectives and formulating long term strategies as well as managing the Group’s overall business.
It comprises nine Directors with a variety of different experience and professionalism. Among them, five are Executive Directors, while
the remaining four are Non-executive Directors. Of the four Non-executive Directors, three are Independent Non-executive Directors
whose indispensable function is to provide independent scrutiny. The Board meets regularly and four board meetings were held in the
year with attendance rate of 91.20% in the year. The Management, led by the Chief Executive, is responsible for formulating and
implementing detailed programmes to effect the approved strategies and policies, and providing detailed reports on the Group’s
performance to the Board on a regular basis to enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively. The Board currently has

set up the following six committees to oversee the major areas of the Group. Details of the committees are given below:

Executive Committee

Under the authority given by the Board, the Executive Committee is responsible for the overall management of the Group, including
overall operation and essential executive management, in order to facilitate the flow and effectiveness of the overall collaboration,
businesses and management of the Group. Its main duties include:

- management of the overall operation and business of the Group;

- coordination and determination of all kinds of matters in the collaboration between the Bank and its subsidiaries and between the

Group and its holding company;

- formulation of the Group’s development strategies for the discussion and approval by the Strategy and Development Committee,

and monitoring the execution and implementation of the Group’s development strategy after the approval by the Board;

- proposal of the Group’s annual business and capital plans, budgets and other strategic measures for the Board’s approval and

monitor the execution and implementation of the aforesaid plans, budgets and strategies thereafter;

- establishment and maintenance of effective financial, operational and management control systems for the Group’s business
operation and development with full compliance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements; and discussion and approval of
the Group’s systems and rules of implementation in accordance with the policies of the regulatory authority and the holding

company;
- discussion and review of other policies which may have material impact on the Group; and

- other than the duties as mentioned above, management, discussion, approval, suggestion and monitoring of other matters
beyond the duties and authorities of other committees under the Board, including information technology management, human

resource strategies, building up corporate culture, etc.

During the year, the Executive Committee has convened 21 meetings. As at the end of the year, members of the Executive
Committee included Messrs. Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman), Fang Hongguang, Wang Tong Sai, Sun Jiandong, Chan Sai Ming, Xiao
Wogen, Qu Helei, Cheng Zeyu and Luo Hanglu, of which Messrs. Chen Xiaozhou, Fang Hongguang, Wang Tong Sai, Sun Jiandong

and Chan Sai Ming were executive directors of the Bank.

10
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Strategy and Development Committee

Strategy and Development Committee is responsible for the consideration and suggestion of the medium and long term development

strategies of the Group. Its main duties include:
- preparation of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies for the Board’s approval;

- examination, proposing, monitoring, review and update of the Bank’s medium and long strategies and recommend the Board

on necessary adjustments of the strategies;

- examination of the formulation of the Bank’s medium and long term strategies and ensure all the potential plans in a certain

selective scope have been adequately considered,

- monitoring the implementation of medium and long term strategies in accordance with established standards and provide

directive guidance to the Senior Management on the implementation;

- examination of material merge and acquisition plans proposed by the Senior Management and advise the Board on the plans;

and

- giving advice to the Board on the Bank’s major investment, capital expenditure and strategic commitment and monitoring the

implementation of the aforesaid.

During the year, the Strategy and Development Committee has convened 3 meetings. As at the end of the year, members of the
Strategy and Development Committee included Messrs. Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman), Fang Hongguang, Wang Tong Sai and Sun

Jiandong (appointed effective from 7 December 2017). All of them were executive directors of the Bank.

11
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit Committee

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight role over the Group in the following areas:

- integrity of financial statements and the financial reporting process;

- internal control system;

- performance of internal audit functions and internal auditors;

- appointment of external auditor and evaluation of external auditor’s qualifications, independence and performance;

- periodic review and annual audit of the Group’s financial statements;

- compliance with applicable accounting standards and legal and regulatory requirements on financial disclosures; and
- enhancement of the corporate governance framework.

During the year, the Audit Committee has convened 4 meetings. As at the end of the year, the members of Audit Committee were
Messrs. Lau Hon Chuen (Chairman), Lan Hong Tsung David and Liang Qiang. All were Non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among

them, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David were Independent Non-executive Directors.

12
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the risk management of the Bank in the

following areas:
- formulation/review of the risk management framework and risk management strategy of the Group;
- identification, assessment and management of material risks faced by the Group;

- oversight, review and assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management policies, procedures,

system framework, risk management systems, infrastructure, resources and internal control;
- review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Group and monitoring the implementation of the aforesaid; and

- examine the remuneration system should align with the Group’s risk culture and risk appetite from the risk management point of

view.

During the year, the Risk Management Committee has convened 4 meetings. As at the end of the year, the members of the Risk
Management Committee were Messrs. Liang Qiang (Chairman), Fang Hongguang, Lau Hon Chuen and Lan Hong Tsung David. All
were Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lau Hon Chuen and Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David were Independent Non-executive

Directors.

Connected Transactions Committee

The Connected Transaction Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of connected transaction of the Bank in

the following areas:
- Review and approve the Bank's connected transaction policy;

- Regularly receives connected transactions information and fully understands the management of connected transactions of the

Bank and gives guidance; and

- In accordance with the provisions of laws and administrative regulations and fair and equitable business principles, timely

approve the bank’s major connected transactions.

During the year, the Connected Transaction Committee has convened 4 meetings. As at the end of the year, the members of the
Connected Transaction Committee were Messrs. Lan Hong Tsung David (Chairman), Lau Hon Chuen and Chan Sai Ming. All were

Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David and Mr. Lau Hon Chuen were Independent Non-executive Directors.

13
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises four members, including one Non-executive Director, Mr. Liang Qiang, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. Chang Hsin Kang, Lau Hon Chuen and Lan Hong Tsung David. It was
chaired by Mr. Lan Hong Tsung David. With effect from 8 June 2017, Mr. Wu Songyun, a Non-executive Director of the Board,
resigned as the member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Independent Non-executive Directors represent 75% of

the Committee members.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of the Group in, among others,

the following areas:
- human resources, remuneration strategy and incentive framework of the Group;
- monitor the culture-related matters of the Group;

- selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and certain senior executives as designated by the Board from

time to time (defined as “Senior Management”);

- structure, size and composition of the board of directors and committees shall be governed by the principle of diversity of board
members (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, geographical location,

professional experience, skills and knowledge etc.) of the Board and Board Committees;
- remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior Management and Key Personnel;
- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees; and

- training and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior Management.

Key tasks performed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 2017 included the approval, review and proposal to the

Board on the following according to the responsibilities and authorities:

- formulation, review and amendment on major human resources and remuneration policies, including the review of the

“Remuneration and Incentive Policy” and “Deferral Variable Remuneration Policy” etc.;
- performance appraisal result of the Senior Management and Key Personnel for year 2016;

- proposal on staff bonus for year 2016, salary adjustment for year 2017 and special bonus of the Senior Management and Key

Personnel;
- key performance indicators of the Senior Management and Key Personnel for year 2017;
- review of the Mandate, Working Rules and Standing Agenda of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
- review of Directors’ Independency Policy;
- election of Directors for 2017;
- Directors’ independency report for 2016;
- self-evaluation report of the Board and Board Committees for 2016;
- consideration of the matters relating to the adjustment and appointment of the Directors of the Group;

- consideration of the appointment and resignation of Key Personnel.

There were two Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings held during 2017. The attendance rate of all the Directors was

909%.

14
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the principles of “effective motivation” and “sound
remuneration management”. It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to encourage staff to enhance

their performance, and at the same time, to strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with the broad principles set out in the HKMA's “Guideline on

a Sound Remuneration System” and applicable to Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited and all of its subsidiaries.

® “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the

HKMA's “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”:

e “Senior Management”: The senior executives directly managed by the Board who are responsible for oversight of the
firm-wide strategy or material business lines, including Managing Director, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives,
Executive Committee Members, Heads of Executive Committee Working Group, Chief Strategy Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Technology Officer, Board Secretary, Head of Audit Department and other particular

personnel.

» “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities involve the assumption of material risk which may
have significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material business lines, heads of major

subsidiaries, Head of Treasury, as well as Head of Risk Management Department.

® Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfill the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk management within the framework of the Remuneration
Policy of the Group, Human Resources Division is responsible for proposing the Remuneration Policy of the Group and will
seek consultation of the risk control units including risk management, financial management and compliance if necessary, in
order to balance the needs for staff motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. The proposed
Remuneration Policy will be submitted to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the Board
of Directors for approval. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors will seek opinions from

other Board Committees (e.g. Risk Management Committee, Audit Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary.

15
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

1. Performance Management Mechanism

The Group has put in place a performance management mechanism to formalise the performance management at the
levels of the Group, units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be cascaded down under the framework of
balanced scorecard whereby the performance of the Senior Management and different units (including business units, risk
control units and other units) would be assessed from the perspectives of financial, customer, building blocks/key tasks,
human capital, risk management and compliance. For individual staff at different levels, annual targets of the Group will be
tied to their job requirements through the performance management mechanism. Performance of individuals will be
appraised on their achievement against targets, their contribution towards performance of their units and fulfilment of risk
management duties and compliance, etc. Not only is target accomplishment taken into account, but the risk exposure
involved during the course of work could also be evaluated and managed, ensuring security and normal operation of the

Group.

. Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk into practice, based on the risk adjustment method of
the Group, the key risk modifiers of the bank have been incorporated into the performance management mechanism of the
Group. Risk adjustment focuses on major issues such as risk compliance, internal control audit, risk management, liability
and liquidity management. The size of the variable remuneration pool of the Bank is calculated according to the risk
adjusted performance results approved by the Board and is subject to its discretion. This method ensures the Bank to fix the
Bank’s variable remuneration pool after considering risk exposures and changes and to maintain effective risk management

through the remuneration mechanism.

16
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

3. Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and “variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the
other for individual staff members depends on job grades, roles, responsibiliies and functions of the staff with the
prerequisite that balance has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion. Generally speaking, the higher the job
grades and/or the greater the responsibilities, the higher will be the proportion of variable remuneration so as to encourage

the staff to follow the philosophy of prudent risk management and sound long-term financial stability.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will determine the remuneration based on the
affordability of the Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As mentioned above, performance

assessment criteria include quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-financial indicators.

According to the Bank Bonus Funding Policy, the size of the variable remuneration pool of the Bank is determined by the
Board on the basis of the financial performance of the Bank and the achievement of non-financial strategic business targets
under the long-term development of the Bank. Thorough consideration is also made to the risk factors in the determination
process. The size of the pool is reached based on pre-defined formulaic calculations but the Board can make discretionary
adjustment to it if deemed appropriate under prevailing circumstances. When the Bank’s performance is relatively weak (e.qg.
failed to meet the threshold performance level), no variable remuneration will be paid out that year in principle. However, the

Board reserves the rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the
performance of the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is attaching to, and the assessment of
which should include risk modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk control personnel are
determined by the achievement of their core job responsibilities, independent from the business they oversee; for front-line
risk controllers, a cross-departmental reporting and performance management system is applied to ensure the suitability of
performance-based remuneration. Within the acceptable risk level of the Group, the better the performance of the unit and

the individual staff, the higher will be the variable remuneration for the individual staff.

17
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

® Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

4. Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value
creation of the Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required
to be deferred in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The higher amount of the variable remuneration

received by the staff, the higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral period lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the long term value creation of the Group. The vesting
conditions are closely linked to the annual performance of the Group in the next 3 years and the individual behaviour of the
staff concerned. When the Group’s performance has met the threshold requirement, the deferred variable remuneration
would be vested following the corresponding schedule. However, if a staff is found to have committed fraud, or any financial
or non-financial factors used in performance measurement or variable pay determination are later proven to have been
manifestly worse than originally understood in a particular year, or individual behaviour / management style pose negative
impacts to the business unit and even the Group, including but not limited to improper or inadequate risk management, etc.,

the unvested portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff would be forfeited.

) Disclosure on remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the

HKMA to disclosure information in relation to our remuneration and incentive mechanism.

18
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LEEULZESFER  Consolidated Income Statement
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For the year ended 31 December

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income

Net trading (loss)/gain

Net loss on financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Net gain on other financial assets

Other operating income

Net operating income before impairment
allowances
Net charge of impairment allowances

Net operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit

Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

Net (loss)/gain from disposal/revaluation of
properties, plant and equipment

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Dividends
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2017 2016
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

10,748,908 7,550,115

(4,754,509) (3,015,306)

5,994,399 4,534,809
1,731,082 1,633,666
(71,234) (61,595)
1,659,848 1,572,071
(144,166) 134,695
(7,586) (7,708)
118,915 192,772
26,421 27,059
7,647,831 6,453,698
(920,461) (486,075)
6,727,370 5,967,623
(2,903,069) (2,656,577)
3,824,301 3,311,046
24,990 29,340
(2,033) 4,136
3,847,258 3,344,522
(591,026) (597,145)
3,256,232 2,747,377
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December

Profit for the year

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:

Premises:
Revaluation of premises
Deferred tax

Defined benefit plan:
Actuarial gains/(losses) on remeasurement
Deferred tax

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:

Available-for-sale securities:

Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities

Release upon disposal of available-for-sale
securities reclassified to income
statement

Amortisation with respect to
available-for-sale securities transferred
to held-to-maturity securities reclassified
to income statement

Deferred tax

Cash flow hedge:
Change in fair value of hedging instruments
Deferred tax

Change in fair value of hedging instruments
under net investment hedges
Currency translation difference

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year
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2017 2016
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

3,256,232 2,747,377

422,069 (64,385)
(59,426) 43,529
362,643 (20,856)
3,060 (1,700)
(505) 280
2,555 (1,420)
365,198 (22,276)
(192,239) (474,312)
(29,018) (91,985)
9,015 1,057
52,434 109,313
(159,808) (455,927)
69,113 (64,130)
(17,278) 16,032
51,835 (48,098)
(77,452) -
887,467 (634,878)
702,042 (1,138,903)
1,067,240 (1,161,179)
4,323,472 1,586,198
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Advances and other accounts

Financial investments

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities
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2017 2016
AT AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

67,735,761 52,327,583
6,114,423 14,679,699
4,142,283 3,680,401

400,843 896,476
234,696,791 192,119,592
111,250,900 76,935,082
302,702 383,830
7,386,981 6,929,407
222,516 100,652
2,808,938 879,987
435,062,138 348,932,709

27,735,507 30,450,210

4,345,543 3,223,456
397,796 934,244
325,415,639 257,527,530
6,781,208 1,095,937
17,145,204 15,908,708
362,383 371,981
789,778 735,675
382,973,058 310,247,741
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SreEEAER (8) Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

#12H31H As at 31 December

N EQUITY

[EZN Share capital

fehfh Reserves

R E N A E R RS AR AE Total equity attributable to owners of the parent
HINEARTE Additional equity instruments

BRI Total equity

B AL Total liabilities and equity

22

2017 2016
AT BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000

3,144,517 3,144,517
39,629,673 35,540,451
42,774,190 38,684,968

9,314,890 -
52,089,080 38,684,968

435,062,138 348,932,709
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At 1 January 2016

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises
Actuarial losses on defined
benefit plan
Available-for-sale
securities
Change in fair value of
hedging instruments
under cash flow hedges
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive income
Release upon disposal of
premises

Transfer to retained earnings

At 31 December 2016

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Ehf
Reserves

AL

N fofE

BB

Reserve for

IR B fair value T4
IR HEffif#f#  changes of B EEH

A Additional EAEEH — Premises available- Cash flow  BEE{kff AL el EALEET
Share equity Capital revaluation for-sale Hedges Regulatory Translation Retained Total
capital instruments _reserve reserve securities reserve reserve* reserve earnings equity
BIETIT BIETIT BETIT BMETT BMETT BIETIT BT BMETT BT BIETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,144,517 - 605 5,854,810 213,754 - 2,255,673 180,522 25,448,889 37,098,770
- - - - - - - - 2,747,377 2,747,377
- - - (20,856) - - - - - (20,856)
- - - - - - - - (1,420) (1,420)
- - - - (455,927) - - - - (455,927)
- - - - - (48,098) - - - (48,098)
- - - (10,321) (4,692) - - (619,865) - (634,878)
- - - (31,177) (460,619) (48,098) - (619,865) 2,745,957 1,586,198
- - - (161,352) - - - - 161,352 -
- - - - - - (244,450) - 244,450 -
3,144,517 - 605 5,662,281  (246,865) (48,098) 2,011,223 (439,343) 28,600,648 38,684,968
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At 1 January 2017

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:
Premises
Actuarial gains on defined
benefit plan
Available-for-sale
securities
Change in fair value of
hedging instruments
under cash flow hedges
Change in fair value of
hedging instruments
under net investment
hedges
Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive income

Issue of additional equity
instruments®

Distribution payment for
additional equity
instruments

Transfer from retained
earnings

At 31 December 2017

1 AR ATETTHENS 93.15 (TRt 12
)R AR RET RGBS — R E AT
TEUNEATH ) - ERES TR
3,611 ETKC AR MRV EA TR

PpE -

* PREEE GRS 30 S BORIRIUK
(B  HeE R B K T R
FIEEE AT — AR 2 s
RAGRK AR TSR ) -

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

Ehf
Reserves

AL

N fofE

BB

Reserve for

HHNEA SR fair value R
IR HEffif#f#  changes of B EEH

A Additional EAEEH — Premises available- Cash flow  BEE{kff AL el EALEET
Share equity Capital revaluation for-sale Hedges Regulatory Translation Retained Total
capital instruments _reserve reserve securities reserve reserve* reserve earnings equity
BIETIT BIETIT BETIT BMETT BMETT BIETIT BT BMETT BT BIETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,144,517 - 605 5,662,281  (246,865) (48,098) 2,011,223 (439,343) 28,600,648 38,684,968
- - - - - - - - 3,256,232 3,256,232
- - - 362,643 - - - - - 362,643
- - - - - - - - 2,555 2,555
- - - - (159,808) - - - - (159,808)
- - - - - 51,835 - - - 51,835
- - - - - - - (77,452) - (77,452)
- - - 16,584 (6,503) (3,737) - 881,123 - 887,467
- - - 379,227  (166,311) 48,098 - 803,671 3,258,787 4,323,472
- 9,314,890 - - - - - - - 9,314,890
- (234,250) - - - - - - - (234,250)
- 234,250 - - - - 518,565 - (752,815) -
3,144,517 9,314,890 605 6,041,508  (413,176) - 2,529,788 364,328 31,106,620 52,089,080

1. During the year, the Bank issued HK$9,315 million (US$1,200 million) perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier 1

capital securities (“additional equity instruments”). Direct issuance costs of HK$36.11 million are accounted for as a deduction

from the additional equity instruments.

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses

or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS 39.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating cash outflow before taxation
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas profits tax (paid)/refund

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of properties, plant and equipment
Purchase of investment properties
Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant

and equipment

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of debt securities and certificates of
deposit
Issue of additional equity instruments
Distribution payment for additional equity
instruments

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

25

2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

(2,398,231) (5,651,317)

(392,895) (394,116)
(291,163) 3,898

(3,082,289) (6,041,535)

(74,925) (211,821)

(2,502) -
115 187,047
(77,312) (24,774)
5,685,271 1,095,937
9,314,890 -
(234,250) -

14,765,911 1,095,937

11,606,310 (4,970,372)

47,568,728 53,822,409

2,336,076 (1,283,309)

61,511,114 47,568,728
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certificated Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale securities, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value, investment properties which are
carried at fair value and premises which are carried at fair value or revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Repossessed assets are
stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further
explained in Notes 1.23.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed.

Except for the annual improvements to HKFRSs that are already mandatorily effective for
accounting period beginning on 1 January 2017, there is no other standard or
amendment adopted by the Group in 2017. The impact of the adoption of these annual
improvements is not material to the Group’s financial statements.

26



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

AT (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. FEEsEcE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.1 4REUEE (&) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) B2017&E1H1H (@) Amendments that are already mandatorily effective for accounting period
BN gsTEER beginning on 1 January 2017
allea X G o)
AR
B/
HEIEERAEE Currently
Applicable for relevant
1) A& financial years to the
Amendments Content beginning on Group
TR 7 58 (KME5T) WEEAE M 2017 F1H1H =
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017 Yes
EaEERTEAE 12 5% (&4E23T) SR BB S AP (A E 201741 H1H s
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for 1 January 2017 No

Unrealised Losses

A GHREEAE 12 9% (&1E5T) TEHAM T RS PRI ER - B (EB S 2007 1H1H i
HIIZE 12 58 ) hiBaBOREERIAYEE

Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: 1 January 2017 No
Clarification of the Scope of HKFRS 12

o ¥ (HFHEsHERIET « Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
%) HMERTE SR ERSME financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
R 75 DU A S s 2= (e activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
R AR S =en Iz Additional disclosure for this amendment is disclosed on the notes of the Group’s
EAENAEED - [ financial statement.

WEiteE MIER TR
FELEEVE) - ZiEET L
BYMEFEES AR
HRFTRAISEE -
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IBEHRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. FEEsEcE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.1 4R8UEE (&) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) BB R & (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
SR RGEEEER have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017
2017 ARG Z
R B AEET
DT EE M 21 & The following standards and amendments have been issued and are mandatory for
BETh 2018 £ 1 H 1 accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018:
HIEEE AR A &
FHEREIATERIMEARL -
RAEEE
AEEEH
EHREHCEE Currently
Applicable for relevant
#RI| BE] 2R HNE financial years to the
Standards/ Amendments/ Int Content beginning on/after  Group
B SERIE 10 SRR EEEE EFRAHRBENSEME MNEERESCE 58 e
AR 28 58 (&fE:T) A
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined No
28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
B EIRE AR 2 98 (&KE3T) AR Ry BRSNS B o3 JEAIG T & 201841 H1H &
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based 1 January 2018 No

Payment Transactions

TR B LERIE 4 58 (&HE8T) EEEEMREGEE 498 TRRGHE, A 2018 F1H1H e
TR BEREERE O T 2R LA

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with 1 January 2018 No
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

TR S AR 9 5f e TH 20181 H1H =

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 Yes

HAEI GRS HEAIE 15 57 TR P EERIWA 201841 H1H =

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 Yes

B SRS 15 9% (KEET) HEB RS ESE 15 3PN EFGERL 2018 4F 1 H 1 H =
ABEE

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from 1 January 2018 Yes
Contracts with Customers

RIS B RS 22 55 SN G AITH I HE 20181 H1H =

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 1 January 2018 Yes
Consideration
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IBEHRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. FEESHECERE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.1 4R8UEE (&) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) BB R & (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
ERFEREAEER have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

2017 FEHEFISRMZ %
RIRAEET ()

AR
B/
EHEAZEE Currently
Applicable for relevant
A BE] /B8 NE financial years to the
Standards/ Amendments/ Int Content beginning on/after  Group
EAGITAEAIS 40 5 (KE:ET) FeE M P Hh A 201841 H1H &
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property 1 January 2018 Yes
TRV B HEERE 9 5t (&1E:T) BB KB iR AT SR 201941 H1H &
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative 1 January 2019 Yes
Compensation
HAEI GRS R 16 57 THE 20191 H1H =
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 Yes
AR B SRR RS 23 5} Frfa st s B B E 1 201941 H1H &
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (new 1 January 2019 Yes
interpretation)
RIS 28 5} (K1EET) el R 8 e i R IR A 2019 1871H s
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint 1 January 2019 No
Ventures
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MsERFEMTEE () Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
1. EFEEHBR (&)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

11 8RR (8)

1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) EAEME AR
EBEREFEER

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

2017 FEHEFISRMZ %
RIRAEET ()

2014 F£ 9 H > Fik
GETEI A AT
AR AR 9
R TR T A 69
A R T A
HEHMNFAER S
PRI E A & 5t
RI% 39 SRR SE
I R A B 3 P
HAAEAIZS 9 57 - &%
U NG 20 &1
& BE Rt
HIRTHRE - &
HEAERIZE 95k A
HIEEENS R T

() R

ERIEE

SR AR
R LU Horp 2 — it
ER - (1) LABEERAL
AERSERTE > (2L
N A R AHA
Y FERSETE
(B T F S AT HE A
# > ROEES - FTA
N AR ST A
fl i) - 2(3)
LI felE S ERt AR
afFRSERTE - S
BN EAE
PS> Z1RAIER)
YAERRIFIERE © )
FECAN SR EHE
T SRR R -
DUR % LEATEEIE
ERRFE

- In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9 “Financial

Instruments”, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to
replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting. The changes introduced in HKFRS 9 are highlighted as
follows:

(i) Classification and Measurement

Financial assets

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the following
measurement categories: (1) measured subsequently at amortised cost, (2)
measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (all fair
value changes other than interest accrual, amortisation and impairment will be
recognised in other comprehensive income) or (3) measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss. Classification is to be made on transition, and
subsequently on initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instruments.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

11 8RR (8)

1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) EAEME AR

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and

EH PR EE
2017 ARG %
RIRAET ()

() 7 kst (HE)

EREE (8D

WA ER A B —IH
St LR TR

& HoAR A
BLE > KR
BREERT A% A E
DISE A 4B 0
HEY » DUEEER
GHI SRR EANR
FLHERRIA S
MBS - WRAA TR
BLEAEBELE
RIS USCH S 43R <82
TR R A E

Mm#% LEASFEE
QEL e IR
B LEEGLAE
S bat AHA 2L
HETRE R - T
A EAM S TR
S EZE bt ARR

st

ety TH—HLL
NnfEfFREETE
BRIFEZEARIER T
AT e At ET
NRfE - FAFERS
PR s TR
FFAA S EEE BRTA
Bt - HNTE
HArA R A
AR TERR I
ATl -
REH R EHERATA
e AEWER SRS TR
PrEAt 2 g - T
H & B R
I FefEWER B RIR
AT eI R R A -
E UK EHIREFITE
I BRI R
ITERE ©

have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only if it is a
debt instrument, and the objective of the entity’s business model is to hold the
asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash flows
characteristics represent only unleveraged payments of principal and interest. A
debt instrument is subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it is held in a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the instrument fulfils the contractual cash flows characteristics. All other debt
instruments are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity instruments are generally measured subsequently at fair value with limited
circumstances that cost may be an appropriate estimate of fair value. Equity
instruments that are held for trading will be measured at fair value through profit
or loss. For all other equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at
initial recognition to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses
in other comprehensive income without subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to the income statement even upon disposal. Dividend income is
recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

11 8RR (8)

1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) EAEME AR
EBEREFEER

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

2017 FEHEFISRMZ %
RIRAEET ()

() 7 kst (HE)

SR

ERN IS (s
CANE A SN G P
Feat BEA LR T
LRI 39 5%
SR RARZE
HIE

RIEH B A EE R
bx > 2RI R <2
BARY O ol B
AR A EET - L
RS AR HEE R
[FROB e TR ESGRYA
RS > FIIRR
oA SRR - W
BES TR SRR TR 65
G RCEE NIV E TS
N e IR & EL
AR A Erat 8
Be > PRSI s 8
BRI E R
N - HEEATELE
IO > ARV
T 8 {81 1] & {57 15 T
SE - HARREWEMTT
fifi = FIRI HAth 2 1A
Wz Y AR HAR R AT
EHROoBZERE®R
N {E AT R 2 A B
B o LA MR
BEELIA EETEAY
HEARGEE R
M4 RV RN E -
IREREEREH
(ERSEN ST E
FY AR AP 1R A
Fa s -

(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities

Except for the two substantial changes described below, the classification and
measurement requirements of financial liabilities have been basically carried
forward with minimal amendments from HKAS 39.

The accounting for fair value option of financial liabilities were changed to
address own credit risk. The amount of change in fair value attributable to
changes in the credit risk of the financial liabilities will be presented in other
comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the total gain or loss is included
in the income statement. If this creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss, then the whole fair value change is presented in the income
statement. The determination of whether there will be a mismatch will need to be
made at initial recognition of individual liabilities and will not be re-assessed.
Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to the income statement but may be transferred within equity. This
removes the volatility in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the credit risk
of liabilities elected to be measured at fair value. It also means that gains caused
by the deterioration of an entity's own credit risk on such liabilities will no longer
be recognised in profit or loss.
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(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
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(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value measurement
contained in HKAS 39 for derivative financial instruments that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument.

(i) Impairment

The standard introduces a new, expected-loss impairment model that will require
more timely recognition of expected credit losses. Specifically, it requires entities
to account for 12 months expected credit losses from inception when financial
instruments are first recognised and to recognise full lifetime expected credit
losses on a more timely basis when there have been significant increases in credit
risk since initial recognition. The impairment for financial instruments that are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments), loan commitments and financial
guarantees will be governed by this standard.
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EBEREFEER

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)
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(i) Impairment (continued)

HKFRS 9 will also fundamentally change the loan loss impairment methodology.
The standard will replace HKAS 39's incurred loss approach with a
forward-looking expected loss (ECL) approach. The Bank will be required to
record an allowance for expected losses for all loans and other debt financial
assets not held at FVPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts. The allowance is based on the expected credit losses associated with
the probability of default in the next twelve months unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is
based on the probability of default over the life of the asset.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment at the end of each
reporting period of whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the
remaining life of the financial instrument.

+ To calculate lifetime ECL, the Bank will estimates the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument during its expected life. ECLs are estimated based
on the present value of expected credit losses over the remaining expected life
of the financial asset discounted at the effective interest rate of the loan, and
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2017 FEHEFISRMZ %
RIRAEET ()

(i)t () (i) Impairment (continued)

- 12 (@ H iy TEHEATE A + 12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL and represent the lifetime cash

BT EES D shortfalls that will result if a default occurs in the 12 months after the reporting
B S —E date (or a shorter period if the expected life of a financial instrument is less
o REEHEHEZ than 12 months), weighted by the probability of that default occurring.
HY 12 {8 5 N4
HAVEEN A
BB (B E A
RER T EATHEH
HEmER 12 A) o
FH 3% 2 4T 4 LR AT IS
NN -

EAFE e HERIEE 39 In comparison to HKAS 39, the Bank expects the impairment charge under
SELLER » AATTHETE HKFRS 9 to be more volatile than under HKAS 39 and to result in an increase in
BRI E A HERAISE 9 the total level of current impairment allowances.

SRVE T AR E R L

RGNS 3955k

SR ED - WEECE

FT R A Y SR AR

b e
RIBFT R AR E The Bank groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, based on the
5 RITREK ST By applied impairment methodology, as described below:

FPEE » BB IER

TR =PiE - BAau

T

- FPREE -BAE - Stage 1 — Performing loans: when loans are first recognised, the Bank
O EREERK recognises an allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

B TR 12 HH

THHEAS B R

s o

B IRE-NENE + Stage 2 — Underperforming loans: when a loan shows a significant increase
O EEAEEERK incredit risk, the Bank records an allowance for the lifetime expected credit
BEWIO - AfTE loss.

EUERA B TEIAE AR

FER <

- BIBER - BEE - Stage 3 — Impaired loans: the Bank recognises the lifetime expected credit
AT RS losses for these loans.

SRHIESAETEIAE FIHE

4o

35



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

IBEHRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
1. FEEsEcE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.1 4R8UEE (&) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) B E R
EHBANALE
2017 ARG Z
RIRAEET (8D
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have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

(i)t () (i) Impairment (continued)

BEAh > RSB =FEEL -
AATHATRR SRR E

In addition, in Stage 3 the Bank accrues interest income on the amortised cost of
the loan net of allowances.

RRAR IS CAGT

BRIEULA -

- HIEHEER + Forward looking information
RATHEAERTIEMTE The Bank will incorporate forward-looking information in the measurement of
FHIBRAYE A ECLs.
AEHEES -
ENREIL VR Y The Bank considers forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
AZE (WEFEER factors (e.g., unemployment, GDP growth, interest rates and house prices)
A AR EE AR (E I and economic forecasts. To evaluate a range of possible outcomes, the bank
R FIRFEE ) intends to formulate three scenarios: a base case, a worse case and a better
AL TE NS RTHE case.
MEE - BT EHE
— 45 A REHTAS
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The base case scenario represents the more likely outcome resulting from the
bank’s normal financial planning and budgeting process, while the better and
worse case scenarios represent more optimistic or pessimistic outcomes. For
each scenario, the Bank will derive an ECL and apply a probability weighted
approach to determine the impairment allowance.

The Bank will use published external information from private economic

FERR TS A RSN forecasting services. Both the Risk and Finance management teams will need to
Eal o BRI e approve the forward-looking assumptions before they are applied for different
T A FE AR [ 1S scenarios.

B2HT 0 EREE

FTHEPEREE -
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2017 FEHEFISRMZ %
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(iii) £z (iii) Hedge accounting

AR eI E The requirements related to hedge accounting would better align the accounting
16 S = e B B i i treatments with risk management activities and enable entities to better reflect
EHEEIE 8 these activities in their financial statements. It relaxes the requirements for
W 5 5 pE Ro % assessing hedge effectiveness which more risk management strategies may be
SR - B eligible for hedge accounting. It also relaxes the rules on using non-derivative
FH T U financial instruments as hedging instruments and allows greater flexibility on
FEALHY K - [ hedged items. Users of the financial statements will be provided with more
eratal e B AN E % relevant information about risk management and the effect of hedge accounting on
Y JE\ e 7 B SR > the financial statements.
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(b) BB R & (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and

EH PR EE
2017 ARG %
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have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

KEE B 2018 F 1 The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group will not restate
H 1 HFEEEanE A comparative information and will recognise any transition adjustments against the
FEHEHERAIEE 9 5F - opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018. During 2017, the Group has
REEKAFEYIL performed a detailed assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The
R WES 2018 expected impacts based on assessments undertaken to date, the total estimated
H 1 H 1 HrES transition adjustment (net of deferred tax) of the adoption of HKFRS 9 reduces the
HEIR SR R A AR 2 opening balance of the Group’s equity at 1 January 2018 by approximately
BRw) 45 6k - 7 2017 HK$0.822 billion, representing:

M REETEHET

PR T B B

HAISE 9 SR E -
FEHR BRI A Y TH A
BE S RNE BTG
HEE 9 BIE A
EEH 2018441 H 1
H HIHEAR) & ANE 7 s
BRI DEUAENE 8.22 {7
TG (HOBRIBIERRTE ) >
BiE

s R MEMETES + a reduction of approximately HK$2 million to the Group’s equity related to new
R ESEEE classification and measurement requirements, primarily due to the reversal of
FEZR B/ D &S 2 unrealised loss from the reclassification of available-for-sale financial assets to
EHETT FEEIS fair value through profit or loss as the Group intends to collect the contractual
FrA DI HL & £ B cash flows of these portfolios;

SRy B YA R H
& bRl A E
ZPIAFEEALET
ARt & I A
E AR EBR

S -
WA

- RUBRAERTRLE < 5 « a reduction of approximately HK$0.820 billion to the Group’s equity related to
B & AR 2 B0 &9 new impairment requirements; and
AW 8.20 ffiT K

o [REE RS S T IH + a reduction of approximately 34 bps to CET1 capital ratio related to overall
T — A AR LR impacts.

KT 34 (EEES -
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1. FEESHECERE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.1 4R8UEE (&) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) BB R & (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
ERFEREAEER have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

2017 FEHEFISRMZ %
RIRAEET ()

HEREBEFERE The above assessments are based on accounting policies, assumptions,
FE—1 A EET TS judgements and estimation techniques that subject to change until the Group
HEEAEREE 9 FRAYIT finalises its first financial statements after applying HKFRS 9.
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(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)
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 In July 2014, the HKICPA issued the HKFRS 15 and established a new five-step

model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or
a modified retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of the
standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address
the implementation issues on identifying performance obligations, application
guidance on principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help ensure a more consistent
application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity
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2017 FEARPZ
ZERIRAET (8)

FAEE MRS - DURE of applying the standard. The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in
RE R B R HKFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to
LA RN 2018 4F 1 the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group
H 1 HERTECFE plans to apply the new requirements only to contracts that are not completed before
HABREERTEAEL o 1 1 January 2018. During 2017, The Group has performed an assessment on the
gk REFEEHENER impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15. The Group expects that the transitional
AR E A G AR adjustment to be made on 1 January 2018 upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not
2018 &£ 1 H 1 Haj be material.
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ZERIRAET (8)

. Eiiiupria e e ¢ HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on
%% 22 %ﬁfﬂ’iﬁﬁ initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the
§1E?FEE§EE%FE‘W E derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
BEYIEEEEAR . . o . .
58 |- FRESR R 7S AR Y advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity
REEEE - B A initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
(BCE TN » (EHE the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance,
TEE AR E A then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or
g?ﬁ%;%ﬁ; receipt of advance consideration. The interpretation does not have material impact
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AT e on the Group's financial statements.
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have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify when an entity should transfer
property, including property under construction or development, into or out of
investment property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is
evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management'’s intentions for the
use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments
should be applied prospectively to the changes in use that occur on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendments. An entity should reassess the classification of property held at the
date that it first applies the amendments and, if applicable, reclassify property to
reflect the conditions that exist at that date. Retrospective application is only
permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 allow financial assets with prepayment features that
permit or require either the borrower or the lender to pay or receive reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the contract to be measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. The amendments clarify
that a financial asset passes the “solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding” criterion regardless of the event or circumstance that
causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or
receives reasonable compensation for that early termination. This amendment will
be mandatory on 1 January 2019, and will allow early adoption. The Group
considers as a whole to adopt the amendments together with the application of the
core components of HKFRS 9 for the first time to better reflect the Group's financial
position and to adopt the amendment as early as 1 January 2018. The application of
the amendments has had no material impact on the financial statements of the
Group.
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have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

In May 2016, the HKICPA issued the HKFRS 16 and replaced HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int
15 Operating Leases - Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The
standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability and
reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability
upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term and change
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have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)

in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting
under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and
finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of HKFRS 16 upon application.
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WRsERENE (8) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. FEESHEBCR (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.1 E8UECE (8) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) EfEME AR (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
ERREBEAEER have not been early adopted by the Group in 2017 (continued)
1t 2017 SFHRATERGY

ZBEARAERT (#)

BB SRS A +  HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement
SR 23 58 WE requirements in HKAS 12 Income Taxes when there is uncertainty over
Ear st R 12 income tax treatments. The Interpretation mainly addresses the following four
% — BT 15 72 o A 1 areas: whether an entity separately considers the uncertainty of tax
O R ET = 4 fa] FE treatments; assumptions adopted by an entity to address the examination of
> B A N E Y tax treatments by taxation authorities; how an entity determines taxable profit
iS5 T T (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates;
T o RN E and how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. The
R DUE A = interpretation does not have material impact on the Group's financial
HETEBEEN statements.
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MsaERENTEE ()  Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. FEEHBECRE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.1 4E8EE (&) 1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) EEFHUBHRELEE (c) Improvements to HKFRSs
Ll

o TEEFREMB WS « “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains HKFRS 1, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28. Except
MR EETR BT for the amendments to HKFRS 12 which have been adopted by the Group for the
BRI 1 FHAHERS current year’s financial statements, the Group expects to adopt the amendments
FHEHEAIES 12 9 from 1 January 2018. None of the amendments are expected to have a significant
KEEGERE financial impact on the Group.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.2 Consolidation
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and all
of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary,
accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment is
established.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Management, which is the chief operating decision maker of
the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the performance of operating
segments. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.

1.4 Foreign currency translation

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred
in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedge or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
securities and other changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the income
statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available for sale are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

» assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the end of the reporting
period;
» income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation reserve in
equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments are taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

1.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
through the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those
of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are designated as hedges
and are effective hedging instruments, then they are subject to measurement under the
hedge accounting requirements.

For derivative instruments designated as hedging instrument and are effectively hedged,
the method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on the nature of
the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as follows:

(@) Hedges of a particular risk associated with a highly probable future cash flow
attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecasted
transaction (cash flow hedge).

Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flow
of hedged items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be
accounted for under hedge accounting.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(@

(b)

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity
are reclassified to the income statement in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any accumulated gain or loss existing in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised in the income statement when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the accumulated gain or loss that was
reported in equity is immediately reclassified to the income statement.

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Accumulated
gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign operation as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

1.6 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all financial
assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g. prepayment
options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid
or received between parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the written down value
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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(continued)

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not an integral part of the effective
yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period when the related service
is provided, such as administrative fee, asset management fee and custody services fee.
Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the related syndication
arrangement has been completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan
package for itself or has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable
to the other participants.

1.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
securities and available for sale financial assets. The Management determines the
classification of investments at initial recognition. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets are held. All financial assets are recognised
initially at fair value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss,
all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their initial carrying amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking is classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedges.
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MR (8) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. FEESHECERE (8) 1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
1.8 &@EE (%) 1.8 Financial assets (continued)
) UL lEZEEFAE (1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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(2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market, including placements with and
advances to banks and other financial institutions, investment debt securities without an
active market and loans and advances to customers. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable.
They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
allowances for impairment losses.

(3) Held-to-maturity financial investments

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in active markets, with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s Management has
both the positive intention and the ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold
held-to-maturity assets (i) other than due to an isolated event beyond the Group’s control,
non-recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by the Group, such as a
significant deterioration in the issuer’s creditworthiness, significant change in statutory or
regulatory requirement; or (ii) other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets,
the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. They are
initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
allowances for impairment losses.

(4) Available-for-sale financial investments

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are either designated as
such or are not classified in any of the other categories. They are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time but may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.8 Financial assets (continued)

(4) Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised or
impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously recognised in equity
should be transferred to the income statement. However, interest income which includes
the amortisation of premium and discount is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other operating income when the
Group’s right to receive payment is established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the fair value
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in other comprehensive
income is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the
effective interest method. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the financial asset using the
effective interest method. If the financial asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, the amount recorded in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss immediately.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale securities is dealt with in
Note 1.4.

1.9 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, deposits, debt securities and certificate of
deposit in issue, and other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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(1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing in the short term. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedges. It is measured at fair value and
any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

(2) Deposit, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, and other liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue and other liabilities, other
than those classified as trading liabilities are carried at amortised cost. Any difference (if
available) between proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the period using the effective interest method.

1.10 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a contract between the
holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities and reported
under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated amortisation
recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the
liability relating to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income statement.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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1.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
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Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and receivables (except
investment securities without an active market) are recognised when cash is advanced
to the borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
Group either continues to recognise the transferred financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is no retained control.

Trading liabilities are recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are not trading liabilities
are recognised when money is received from customers, other liabilities are recognised
when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from the balance
sheet when and only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase agreement are
referred to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an
obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future
date under a resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.
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1.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments (continued)
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received from the counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase
agreements are not derecognised and are recorded as financial investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Reverse repos or securities
borrowing are initially recorded in the balance sheet as cash and due from banks or
placements with banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual
amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets received as collateral under
reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The
difference between sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest income or
interest expense over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.

1.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious metals and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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1.12 Fair value measurement (continued)
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If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation techniques,
including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis,
option pricing models and other valuation technigues commonly used by market
participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

1.13 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold. Precious metals are initially recognised and
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains or losses on precious
metals are included in net trading gain/loss.

1.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the reliably estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets may be impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about the following probable loss events:
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payment;

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise
consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below investment grade level
for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
assets in the group, including:

adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group; or

national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in
the group.

(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment together with all other financial assets that are not
individually significant or for which impairment has not yet been identified. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

63



MR (8
1. EEEHBOR (&)

114 SREERE (8D

() LUER A I E
HEE (H)

MR H BRI ER
B e A = E I H
e EE AR EIRSS A
TR IR AR 1% I E Y
$H T < B AL B, < R O E 1
JFUACH PR 2 3R 1% Y T
FPARAER A BRI AR
FEERVARZRAE IR ORYIR
(B2 YR TR o UK
TEAR SR A (5 AR (A 2K
kD B A AVAR TR 28
HEREHAUREE RN - AR EEK
A RRIHHE R T
PR RS ETEIREIRR
HY B3R By §% 5 AU T E Y
AT - L K
EETRA R B R R
T35 (8 (B HfE P T B T
=GP =R AN (-8
ST -

I A A SR E 2
THST AR G A AR AR
B2 R R S Y E
FUBRAE BT H & B2 AR b
Z ARG -

AR HE T 4H A R T
filiEE - FFAR I SR
FAR DU LI R 12 3 <
BEEHET 4 - IR
FEtZFEEE S ZARK
e fUAERA > 7] DA W%
NF IR ST Al R
EHIRE B PTA I &
FHEEST -

HEemMEEETES
RS MBI > HFER R
CER S T 4% 4 S AR R
BB SR AR AL
PN B 4H < Rl A 2 B
DU BB (A 5 E Y
JEE SRR KB ke - D b
JEE S #8 J K B i AR 922
RSB TR LI
e SIf A o 5 B B IR S 4R
RIEIRTE AT R R
SRR S BR BRI BRI
EEHCAFENTES
IH -

5 NCB #:f#i% 441

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity security has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised
financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial assets are grouped
on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms
of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
group and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period
on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions
in the historical period that do not exist currently.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for impairment
losses. Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment losses decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial difference in the terms are
no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new loans.

(2) Financial assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the accumulated
losses, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost or amortised cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is
reversed through the income statement. With respect to equity instruments, further fair
value changes are recognised in the reserve for fair value change of available-for-sale
securities through other comprehensive income, impairment losses are not reversed
through the income statement.
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1.15 BB AT RIESRMEE 1.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-financial assets
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Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Potential indications of
impairment may include significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the assets operate or whether there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
also required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of that entity in the Bank's balance sheet exceeds the
carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its consolidated
balance sheet.

1.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are classified as investment
properties in individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it is a finance lease.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.16 Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related transaction
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is stated at cost less
impairment and is included in the carrying amount of investment properties. Once the
item begins to generate economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as premises, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of
premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value
gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
the income statement up to the amount previously debited.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are shown at fair value
based on periodic, at least annual, valuations by external independent valuers less
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening periods, the
directors review the carrying amount of premises, by reference to the open market value
of similar properties, and adjustments are made when there has been a material
change.

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition and
installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The item is stated at cost until it begins to generate economic benefits, then the
item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis of its respective
assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are credited to the
premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are charged against premises
revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are
expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the
income statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released and transferred
from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost or revalued
amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Properties

Over the life of government land leases
Plant and equipment

2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at the end of
each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of information are
considered to determine whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does
not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a
revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset'’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or the income statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.18 fE 1.18 Leases
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(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. The total payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any
payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an
expense in the period in which termination takes place. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases
Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Government land leases in Hong Kong are
classified as finance leases as the present value of the minimum lease payments (i.e.
transaction price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair value of the land as
if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities. Investment properties acquired
under finance leases are carried at their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease
payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is recognised over the term of
the lease using net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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1.19 Cash and cash equivalents
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For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity less than three months from the date of
acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and other financial institutions,
short-term bills and notes classified as investment securities.

1.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.

1.21 Employee benefits

(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes under either
recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are available to the Group’s
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme costs are charged
to the income statement as incurred and represent contributions payable by the Group to
the schemes. Contributions made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees
who leave the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entittement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions or to
meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds separate from
those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised when they accrue
to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for unused annual leave and
the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

121 BEEF (&) 1.21 Employee benefits (continued)
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(2) Leave entitlements (continued)

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved annual leaves are
non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s entitlement is not used in full. Except
for unexpired annual leaves, they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by employees
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted if the amounts are
significant.

(4) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is unfunded. The cost of providing
benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from actuarial gains and losses of the defined benefit plan, is
recognised immediately in the consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

121 BEEF (&) 1.21 Employee benefits (continued)
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation under ‘“interest expenses” and “operating expenses” in the consolidated
income statement by function:

service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

net interest expense or income

1.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and the
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income, is recognised as a current income tax
expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
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1.22 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)
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The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment provisions, depreciation
of premises and equipment, and revaluation of certain assets including available-for-sale
securities and premises. However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of any unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except for deferred
income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale securities and
revaluation of premises which are charged or credited to other comprehensive income,
in which case the deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the income statement
together with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property is determined
based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of such investment property will
be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.
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5 NCB #:f#i% 441

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value less costs to
sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of repossession,
and the related loans and advances together with the related impairment allowances
are derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported as
“non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

1.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its
holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

1.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
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1.25 SARABREAREE(E) 1.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (continued)
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of business
activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these
risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and
processes for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all business
processes and ensure various risks are properly managed and controlled in the course of
conducting business. The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure with
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control
various risks that may arise. These risk management policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups
of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that the Group
has an effective risk management system to implement these strategies.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee established by the Board of
Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, approving
high-level risk management policies and monitoring their implementation, recommending
senior risk management organisational structure to the Board, including credit approval
authority for the Chief Executive and scope of credit approval for the Credit Approval
Committee. The Risk Management Committee would refer any specific transaction to the
Board if it is deemed so significant that Board approval is desirable. The Risk Management
Committee, from the risk management viewpoint assesses whether incentives created by the
remuneration system are aligned with the risk culture and risk appetite, and whether
remuneration awards appropriately reflect the level of risk-taking and consequences. It also
assists to fostering a strong risk culture within the Group. The Audit Committee assists the
Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the internal control system.

The Credit Approval Committee is responsible for credit approval within the authorisation
granted by the Board of Directors and monitoring the credit activities of the Group. The Chief
Executive is responsible for organising and implementing the risk management strategies
and objectives established by the Board of Directors, managing various risks and approving
significant risk exposures or transactions within the authorisation granted by the Board of
Directors.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which are independent
from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds of
risks. Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and
updating various risk management policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including establishment of
an organisational structure that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring
compliance with policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient
independence of the control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate
internal control environment.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on
product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business and product
development plans, and proceeding to specific product development activities. The strategic
development unit shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s overall strategies. Units
that are responsible for risk management, legal, compliance and finance, etc. are
accountable for risk assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units work closely with
relevant risk evaluating units to identify and assess the risks of new products. Risk
evaluating units conduct independent review on the risk assessment results and the
corresponding risk management measures. Products can only be launched upon completion
of the product due diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating units.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our customers. All new
treasury products require approval from a specialised committee before launching.

2.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book,
as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally
from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.

79



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

MR (&)
2. SRiERREHE (&)
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EEEE (8) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management policies and
procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisational structure establishes a clear set of authority and responsibility
for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a management committee authorised by
the Chief Executive, is responsible for the implementation of the credit risk management
strategies as well as the approval of credit policies. It also monitors the Group’s loan
portfolio, quality of credit asset and risk concentration level. Different units of the Group
have their respective credit risk management responsibilities. Business units act as the first
line of defence. The risk management units, which are independent from the business
units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and have the primary
responsibilities for providing an independent due diligence through identifying, measuring,
evaluating, monitoring, reporting and controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks
and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management policies
and procedures. They report directly to the Credit and Loans Management Committee,
Chief Executive, Credit Approval Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited (“NCB (China)”) sets up independent risk
monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and submits management information and reports
to the Bank on a regular basis.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EEEE (8) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit authority. The Board of Directors
delegates credit approval authority to the Credit Approval Committee and the Chief
Executive. Based on management needs, the Chief Executive can further delegate to the
credit-related subordinates within the limit authorised by the Board of Directors. The Group
sets the limits of credit approval authority according to the credit business nature, rating, the
level of transaction risk, and the size of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been continuously revising
its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to the level of risk
associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction. All credit applications are subject
to thorough risk assessment and proper approval. In general, most of the credit applications
will be reviewed and assessed by independent officer(s) of risk management unit(s) before
approval, with exceptions given to designated advances which satisfy certain conditions.
After funding being drawn, these designated advances will be (randomly) reviewed by
designated unit(s) which is(are) independent from the front line business units. Obligor
ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss given default)
are assigned to credit applications for non-retail exposures to support credit approval. Retail
internal rating systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions,
including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans, personal loans, etc.
Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used to
support credit approval.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EEEE (8) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)
Advances (continued)

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if applicable) to
support monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk. For non-retail exposures, more
frequent rating review and closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For
retail exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are used for credit
monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required for obligors being
identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to Standard &
Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master rating scale is in compliance
with the requirement of the Banking (Capital) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Regular or ad hoc credit risk management information reports are provided to the
Management, Credit Approval Committee, Executive Committee, Risk Management
Committee and the Board of Directors to facilitate their continuous monitoring of credit risk.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EEEE (8) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography, customer
and counterparty. The Group monitors changes in counterparty credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five categories
with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is in current meeting its repayment
obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing difficulties which
may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable weakness that is
likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group expects
to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the net realisable value of
the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection options
(such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)
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2.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk measurement and control (continued)
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Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities and securitisation assets, the obligor ratings or external
credit ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on
customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the
investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to manage the credit risk
involved and follows the same approval and control processes as applied for advances.
On-going monitoring and stop-loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with counterparties and
also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or
equities is made in the failure of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities.
Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty or customer to cover all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the credit risk
management policies and procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is
revalued on a regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group
has established a mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is insured with the
Group as the primary beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s financial
condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not hold any collateral that it was permitted to
sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower (2016: Nil).
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2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(A) EERERE (A) Credit exposures
AEEH 5 {EEE The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the Group
fg AR B T A AT without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements. For
AR R A = on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their carrying
BRI B B R amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
o BNEEAMESE maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are
WNEE > kmsERE called upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum
b AR AR S HR exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.
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PUT B P i o ke The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial
Hr = E 8RN effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as follows.

T R H AR &

BEREENEER

fE o

1E $R1T Fe HoAth £ Rl Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
TERYAERR K IE BREFTX

BN ST These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
B e AR counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.
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NIAEE LT AIEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial investments
Z B RE R S E
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— R GRS 5 Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.
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(A) Credit exposures (continued)
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Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”) derivative
transactions are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon
termination following the occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In
addition, if deemed necessary, Credit Support Annex ("CSA") will be included to form
part of the Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is
passed from one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are
collateralised to the extent considered appropriate by the Group taking account of
the risk assessment of individual exposures. The components and nature of
contingent liabilities and commitments are disclosed in Note 36. Regarding the
commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group
would assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit
quality of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments,
14.48% (2016: 14.05%) was covered by collateral as at 31 December 2017.

87



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
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2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 8 HAERETE (B) Gross advances and other accounts
PEEURE EF AT 48 Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are summarised
SRR HA AR IR by product type as follows:
AT
2017 2016
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
wFPEK Advances to customers
{EPN Personal
- 5 - Mortgages 27,521,697 26,219,040
- EHF - Credit cards 253,087 441,046
- HAl - Others 13,921,666 11,549,920
NE] Corporate
- PHEEK - Commercial loans 185,746,630 141,974,726
- HER& - Trade finance 7,764,256 7,596,230
235,207,336 187,780,962
HoEE Trade bills 1,526,269 5,665,154
236,733,605 193,446,116
EHESIHE & Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
o HEARE AR principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
B R AT R 1E instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
o AIYIEmE & remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
K e JATERARAE R when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
ZEHO BHHP X not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
Sy HH 3 FE i B R continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the borrower.
AR - A5I1E
FHRERE - ZHENHAE
Z B B IR 3K
NIEZEZFGEA - E2
B AR RE
o ER—HEH
ER /USRI
R > TRYIE
AR o
(R4 ECE Ird i Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
SRR —EHE % objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred and
TEFESL S KOEEE that loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the advances
HERELEEGD that can be reliably estimated.

FEHTH TSRS
RAGHR BT AZE
BB E RS -
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2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 8 HAERETE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(&)
FIESE-S TR If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on advances has been
B R BE incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
&% HEESEZE amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows generated by the
U T {E B R 2R B advances. Objective evidence that advances are impaired includes observable data
&R T IR E W that comes to the attention of the Group about the loss events.
ZFEHETE D BRE
B E R AN
BB BaEBED

A EERE S A &
BRIBRIEA RN -

RKEHBREBEUTE The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an
BB ERS impairment loss include:
U BURE L
- fERAHBEEK - Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;
HYRA TS PRI
- HEEELEG - A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest
BN & 17 2@ payment;
FHME AR B R
B
- EER - For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the
%5‘.%% REEH Group has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise
N PP consider;
l%%)‘é Tl
T ERNERK
R LR
- HEBBERERK - Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
N R i B reorganisation; or

TR 5

- HMHABERER - Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
B BE &I R estimated future cash flows from such advances.
HIR R
HRHHEH T -
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2. SREEREE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 8 HAERTE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€:-))
(a) FEBMEARKHT (a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired
=¢7¢
JEREAAHAE Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are analysed by internal credit
TIENEEER grade as follows:
RISIHTATT
2017
FEME  EEMT
=1 Special Substandard YEET
Pass mention or below Total
AT AT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEK Advances to customers
A Personal
- J8 - Mortgages 27,230,431 11,275 10,191 27,251,897
- [EHF - Credit cards 235,714 - - 235,714
- HAl - Others 13,820,661 17,581 916 13,839,158
S| Corporate
- BEENK - Commercial loans 182,868,355 1,764,807 27,723 184,660,885
- BORE - Trade finance 7,652,564 26,793 - 7,679,357
231,807,725 1,820,456 38,830 233,667,011
o Trade bills 1,526,269 - - 1,526,269
233,333,994 1,820,456 38,830 235,193,280
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired (continued)

2016
WY WEPEAT
“tg Special  Substandard 4=t
Pass mention or below Total
BT BT AT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 25,885,478 40,898 987 25,927,363
- Credit cards 410,212 19 - 410,231
- Others 11,492,203 18,074 - 11,510,277
Corporate
- Commercial loans 139,339,502 1,844,628 2,556 141,186,686
- Trade finance 7,453,678 61,053 - 7,514,731
184,581,073 1,964,672 3,543 186,549,288
Trade bills 5,665,154 - - 5,665,154
190,246,227 1,964,672 3,543 192,214,442

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment loss
where the advances are fully collateralised. While such advances are of
“substandard” or lower grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and

have been included in the above tables.
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(B) BB HMARE
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(b) HIFRBEE

SRR E &
FMTAT -

HPERK Advances to customers
PN Personal
- %48 - Mortgages
- BHF - Credit cards
- HAt - Others
NG| Corporate
- FEE - Commercial loans
- HoRE - Trade finance

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is analysed as follows:

2017
AT
3{EA
ERESE AR
6 @A 6 {E A
BEI 3 A Overdue (BFR#EE
BT for 14
Overdue six months Overdue B
for or less for one HiE1E
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one =t
or less months six months year Total
BT BT AT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
202,253 3,018 4,934 14,051 224,256
10,594 - - - 10,594
56,620 1,237 9,302 492 67,651
180,321 - - 2,414 182,735
14,223 17,371 - - 31,594
464,011 21,626 14,236 16,957 516,830
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€-))
(b) BFHARBEERK
€:-))
HEEK Advances to customers
PN Personal
- %48 - Mortgages
- BHF - Credit cards
- HAt - Others
NG| Corporate
- PEE - Commercial loans
- R - Trade finance

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2016
A
3{&EH
[EEN Y A
6 {& H 6 {&H
e 3 {5 H Overdue B
EdYaN for 14
Overdue six months Overdue #HrHH
for or less for one il 14
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one YAz
or less months six months year Total
T BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
214,590 4,298 1,478 30,167 250,533
16,847 - - - 16,847
32,829 664 559 517 34,569
246,822 1,743 4,998 - 253,563
6,722 1,225 - - 7,947
517,810 7,930 7,035 30,684 563,459
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2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(c) Impaired advances

2. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as

follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Impairment allowances
made in respect of
such advances

Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such

advances to customers

Covered portion of such advances to

customers

Uncovered portion of such advances to

customers

94

2017 2016

FEH A

mifE [
YRR Market G Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BETT BETT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
45,544 46,557 41,144 36,522
6,779 - 13,968 -
14,857 11,381 5,074 12,021
903,010 74,537 534,477 236,903
53,305 - 73,552 1,920
1,023,495 132,475 668,215 287,366

819,992 474,566

2017 2016

BT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

132,475 287,366

118,175 113,048

905,320 555,167
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 48K EAIRIA (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(&

(c) BEEK (&) (c) Impaired advances (continued)
TBEEF B E The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of
SR R collateral in respect of such advances.
fE(E -
2017 4E 12 A As at 31 December 2017, there were no impaired trade bills (2016: Nil).

31 H - BARE
ZH 5 %K

( 2016 4F :
i) o
W5 E 4y HE 5RE Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
2R P EK G
AW :
2017 2016
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FFE T FHEOREZ Gross classified or impaired advances to
BB customers 1,129,546 740,215
FEE S HEORE Gross classified or impaired advances to
& PSR customers as a percentage of gross
BB AL advances to customers
= 0.48% 0.39%
L A SR A Individually assessed impairment
A 2 BB allowances made in respect of such
advances 819,789 474,147
HE 4y HE BV Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are either
CEPEHEE classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of
AR EEERE loan quality, or individually assessed to be impaired.

2B "X
ey~ TR K
MiEstR ) BoREE
B EEAS R 8 E 7Y
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as

follows:

2017 2016
A% B R AR 18 = B AR
Btk Btk
% of gross % of gross
B advances to $%A advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross advances to
customers which
have been
overdue for:
- six months or
less but over
three months 157,953 0.07% 205,766 0.11%
- one year or less
but over six
months 321,281 0.13% 121,647 0.07%
- over one year 583,352 0.25% 339,655 0.18%
Advances overdue
for over three
months 1,062,586 0.45% 667,068 0.36%
Individually
assessed
impairment
allowances
made in respect
of such
advances 805,993 421,834
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

21 (28R (&) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 48K EAIRIA (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€-))
(d) BEAEE 3@EB (d) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
ZER (8
2017 2016
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
b A R Current market value of collateral held
SNEFERZ against the covered portion of such
RS TE advances to customers 287,524 320,355
LatERE L EE Covered portion of such advances to
ZEEEE customers 170,879 136,249
A E IR S E Uncovered portion of such advances to
EIZEEERK customers 891,707 530,819
i HA B 3 e R R Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
=R R charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
EHENE RS corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.
FHETHEAE
ENEERES
BT WARER
H T {EBEE
YISk -
A 2017 4 12 H As at 31 December 2017, there were no trade bills overdue for more than three
31 H - HaiE months (2016: Nil).
B3EAEHE

1%(2016 4 fiE ) -
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 48K EAIRIA (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€-))
(e) KEHHEEK (e) Rescheduled advances
2017 2016
{5 R 1 PR R
Btk H\orth
% of gross % of gross
458 advances to £5E advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
AT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEHE P EFCFH Rescheduled
(EREER advances to
Ui 3 (E A customers net
ZEH HY) of amounts
included in
“Advances
overdue for
more than
three months” 8,506 0.00% 2,292 0.00%
KEHER T S Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
& R Ry B L renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or
PR 8 B # BE 7 40 of the inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.
HA % 500 4% Rescheduled advances, which have been overdue for more than three months
EEEREREE under the revised repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more
FEtElZ g5 & than three months”.
STEAE ER
R E 4 & A
w3 HH
RIEFELE " amiAE
i 3{EH 2 &5
A o
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2.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of loans and advances.

2017
AR fERlEHEr  4AEFHEZ
HAtFEH WENE AR A BB
EESFEE BEE2Ooh SR Individually ~ Collectively
Gross % covered by  Classified assessed assessed
advances to  collateral or or A impairment impairment
customers other security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
BT T AT T BT BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEAFEHZ SR Loans for use in Hong Kong
TG4 Industrial, commercial and
financial
- YRR - Property development 13,314,714 14.94% - - - 38,388
- VRS - Property investment 11,619,518 91.75% 17,266 13,598 12,958 84,720
- R - Financial concerns 14,241,301 3.27% - - - 39,958
- BEEERRLD - Stockbrokers 235 100.00% - - - 2
- e B - Wholesale and retail trade 8,933,689 54.41% 64,104 211,546 50,606 47,909
- Bl - Manufacturing 11,387,243 19.72% 24,235 29,619 14,885 41,452
- i R AR - Transport and transport
equipment 4,472,168 13.74% - 366 - 13,678
- (REEED - Recreational activities 15,453 6.31% - - - 118
- R - Information technology 3,602,709 1.07% - - - 14,047
- HAh - Others 16,785,387 56.65% 150,236 175,532 78,110 82,927
EA Individuals
- EEHEEHHES - Loans for the purchase of
RN flats in Home Ownership
R R Scheme, Private Sector
P Participation Scheme
HE=#H
ﬁﬁ’f:ﬁﬁgj@ and Tenants Purchase
FLE Scheme 269,153 100.00% 390 5,784 - 137
- MEEHM Y - Loans for purchase of
> EE other residential
properties 13,108,084 99.90% 5,286 74,123 - 5,730
- HoA - Others 9,483,433 77.35% 1,903 28,425 - 4,126
HEEHE 2 £5%4%H  Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 107,233,087 47.64% 263,420 538,993 156,559 373,192
& Trade finance 9,538,676 20.30% 94,677 100,438 51,024 61,053
EEFHEDIMEF &% Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 118,435,573 34.05% 771,449 888,506 612,206 782,780
PR Gross advances to customers 235,207,336 39.69% 1,129,546 1,527,937 819,789 1,217,025
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2.1 Credit risk (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

&P E R
(&)
2016
TR Ry G
HoAth A FFE I TRAEZEM R IR
FREEHYEE AEEZEI EWEE Individually Collectively
Gross % covered by Classified assessed assessed
advances to collateral or or A impairment impairment
customers _other security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
A BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEEAEHZ &%) Loans for use in Hong Kong
TRE4EE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- YR - Property development 9,395,050 6.41% - - - 21,917
- WIS - Property investment 10,775,101 84.72% 29,680 26,154 762 94,939
- SR - Financial concerns 11,037,686 3.70% - - - 23,910
- AR EEE - Wholesale and retail trade 8,029,810 43.50% 75,789 102,065 52,168 53,357
- Bl - Manufacturing 8,334,113 20.75% 35,676 33,786 15,582 31,662
- H B R - Transport and transport
equipment 5,973,029 11.14% - 360 - 39,465
- {RELES) - Recreational activities 3,437 29.82% - - - 18
- HHEHY - Information technology 2,272,628 1.14% - - - 4,733
- Hith - Others 12,915,062 56.98% 10,631 47,460 5,528 71,099
lEPN Individuals
- EEEEHEST - Loans for the purchase of
=)\ FLA MRS flats in Home Ownership
R R Scheme, Private Sector
e Participation Scheme
HE
ﬁE”TFD I and Tenants Purchase
FZEH
Scheme 293,571 99.79% 751 9,536 - 210
- EEHM - Loans for purchase of
T other residential
properties 13,105,671 99.93% 6,995 84,233 - 6,049
- HAh - Others 8,782,704 71.29% 1,864 28,094 186 5,058
EFBFHS3%E%E  Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 90,917,862 47.37% 161,386 331,688 74,226 352,417
& Trade finance 7,596,230 23.78% 75,083 81,499 58,242 42,275
EEALIMER 2S5 Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 89,266,870 37.67% 503,746 795,102 341,679 457,685
B AR Gross advances to customers 187,780,962 41.81% 740,215 1,208,289 474,147 852,377
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement,
and classified or impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:

Loans for use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and financial
- Property development
- Property investment
- Financial concerns
- Stockbrokers
- Manufacturing
- Wholesale and retail trade
- Manufacturing
- Transport and transport equipment
- Recreational activities
- Information technology
- Others

Individuals

- Loans for the purchase of flats in
Home Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme

- Loans for purchase of other
residential properties

- Others

Total loans for use in Hong Kong
Trade finance
Loans for use outside Hong Kong

Gross advances to customers

101

2017 2016
WSHRE R E
A ﬁﬁﬁﬁ \ ¥ETE JEWE%?X
Classified or JRAEAEME  Classified or
o New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BT BT AMETTT ARMETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
13,135 - 3,334 2,497
13,103 - 2,629 1,351
34,017 - - -
2 _ _ -
1 - - -
3,719 1,268 8,723 8,891
4,796 1,508 1,885 409
185 - 1,307 236
81 - - -
7,078 - 246 1,386
75,014 2,046 175 833
_ ’ ) i
2,392 3,587 12,829 13,658
153,523 8,411 31,128 29,261
35,235 8,382 38,946 8,132
835,708 290,165 620,538 464,549
1,024,466 306,958 690,612 501,942
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

21 EERE (&) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 4BEE R HATERIR (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
€:-))
) ZEEEXRETE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&)
(i) 42 3 28 1 1K 4y (il) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
BZEPEK
THIRN&EFE The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
B H locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For
15 43 Hr = AR 8 an advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different
o EF 2B from the customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
1M MR R
JE B AL R 2 -
HEPERZ
NG TR
B 2 = p A 3t
NI v
Y EERA
ZPTEH -
S Gross advances to customers
2017 2016
AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
G Hong Kong 119,688,483 99,595,734
o [B7] AT HE, Mainland of China 101,473,976 78,467,343
HAM Others 14,044,877 9,717,885
235,207,336 187,780,962
REFERE Collectively assessed impairment
VP4 SR allowances in respect of the gross
i 2 BB % advances to customers
%
T Hong Kong 459,189 399,995
o B Y HE Mainland of China 704,174 414,707
HAth Others 53,662 37,675
1,217,025 852,377
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 48K EAIRIA (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
) ZEEEXRETE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
(i) Fh B I oy (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
B H P E»K
daEa (8)
BHASEK Overdue advances
2017 2016
BETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHk Hong Kong 507,437 303,149
o 5] A Mainland of China 1,013,598 895,663
HAth Others 6,902 9,477
1,527,937 1,208,289
w8 E Individually assessed impairment
EREEZ allowances in respect of the overdue
BB H advances
T Hong Kong 154,289 36,869
o R Y HE Mainland of China 652,800 412,222
HoAtl Others 245 301
807,334 449,392
w3 E Collectively assessed impairment
HEFM/Z allowances in respect of the overdue
BB H advances
Tk Hong Kong 1,826 3,105
R P HE Mainland of China 7,022 12,749
HAth Others 148 134
8,996 15,988
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 48K EAIRIA (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
) ZEEEXRETE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&
(i) F2z Hb B 15 45 oy (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
Bz ®EPHERK
daEE ()
T B 4 FE B Classified or impaired advances
EERK
2017 2016
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk Hong Kong 296,008 121,649
o [5] AgH, Mainland of China 832,797 617,750
HoAth Others 741 816
1,129,546 740,215
M ESER Individually assessed impairment
REERE allowances in respect of the
{E R EEAL 2 classified or impaired advances
B A
T Hong Kong 165,468 37,167
o [e7] ATHE Mainland of China 654,077 436,679
Hthr Others 244 301
819,789 474,147
LA B S K Collectively assessed impairment
BAE B E allowances in respect of the
HEFMEZ classified or impaired advances
BEAE
Tk Hong Kong 774 705
o [B7] AT 1, Mainland of China 593 731
1,367 1,436
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IBEHRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

21 (28R (&) 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(C) WEIEE (C) Repossessed assets
TEER - ARG E 8 During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as
L ST U (] security. The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 December are
B RE T LA A6 summarised as follows:

12 H 31 HFAE
7E » HEE R AR {E
T

2017 2016

BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000

PHZEY)FE Commercial properties - 592
(EResty/E = Residential properties 42,675 1,031

42,675 1,623

AREE 2017 4 12 The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
H 31 HfFAMULE December 2017 amounted to HK$164,266,000 (2016: HK$109,837,000). The
BEE 2 AGE R A& repossessed assets comprise properties in respect of which the Group has acquired
164,266,000 IT access or control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the
(2016 & : #w proprietors concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.
109,837,000 JT )- 75

BLFE A & i 0

T 5

HIRERE (NS

EEEFRELH

FRA AR E E TT

HEUS) MEERA

Y {55 765 3 17 4 BB

fEilap 1 o

RV EIN-3:i0F 527 When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may
BE I F BN - K consider the following alternatives:

FEER BT

FI TR

R R - adjusting the selling prices

- EEEEE—OF - selling the loans together with the assets

- ZHHEGEA - arranging loan restructuring
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements with banks and
other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by
rating agency designation.

2017
A3 DLF
Aaa % A3 Lower ki #Est
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT BT BETIT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Central banks 25,177,434 - - 25,177,434
Banks and other
financial
institutions 17,458,436 8,349,975 22,261,126 48,069,537
42,635,870 8,349,975 22,261,126 73,246,971
2016
A3 DLT
Aaa £ A3 Lower AR Y
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
HETIT BT BETOT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Central banks 18,761,393 - - 18,761,393
Banks and other
financial
institutions 23,417,390 11,734,600 12,532,312 47,684,302
42,178,783 11,734,600 12,532,312 66,445,695

As at 31 December 2017, there were no overdue or impaired balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions (2016: Nil).
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

21 =8RE (&)
(B) %S REE

NER TR
W Z BB R 55 S K
SR - (IS TRY
SAIEICT Az o

PN:IRE €=
it ERS S Available-for-sale
securities
FE 22 HE S Held-to-maturity
securities
SR FEWGR Loans and receivables
NEE(LE AJE25  Financial assets at fair
B RE value through profit
or loss
it E S Available-for-sale
securities
FE 22 HE S Held-to-maturity
securities
SR FEWGR Loans and receivables
NEE(LE AJE25  Financial assets at fair
B RE value through profit
or loss

2.1 Credit risk (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying values of debt securities and
certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
designated for the issuers are reported.

2017
A3 BT
Aal & Aa3 Al & A3 Lower FEELR 4=t
Aaa Aalto Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT BETT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
22,088,001 9,404,952 45,057,460 8,385,055 19,090,003 104,025,471
- - 3,457,187 - - 3,457,187
- - - - 3,753,086 3,753,086
3,530,667 311,582 - - 300,034 4,142,283
25,618,668 9,716,534 48,514,647 8,385,055 23,143,123 115,378,027
2016
A3 LI
Aal #F Aa3 Al & A3 Lower P4 Yz
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
13,616,860 23,809,336 15,150,997 7,729,268 9,791,483 70,097,944
207,630 1,856,312 - - - 2,063,942
- 842,909 397,410 - 3,519,496 4,759,815
3,233,647 205,116 241,638 - - 3,680,401
17,058,137 26,713,673 15,790,045 7,729,268 13,310,979 80,602,102
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2.1 Credit risk (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

The following tables present an analysis of debt securities and certificates of deposit

neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by issue rating. In the absence of
such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

PRARZ 5T - TR ST
PRAREITE TS Rl
BT AEEA S -
n it e S Available-for-sale
securities
FE 22 HE S Held-to-maturity
securities
B EER Loans and receivables
NEE(LE AJE25  Financial assets at fair
B RE value through profit
or loss
n it e S Available-for-sale
securities
FE 22 HE S Held-to-maturity
securities
B TEER Loans and receivables

AR T PNt

L ERAE

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

2017

A3 BT
Aal & Aa3 Al & A3 Lower FEELR 4=t
Aaa Aalto Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AT BETT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
22,088,001 9,404,952 45,057,460 8,385,055 19,090,003 104,025,471
- - 3,457,187 - - 3,457,187
3,530,667 311,582 - - 300,034 4,142,283
25,618,668 9,716,534 48,514,647 8,385,055 19,390,037 111,624,941

2016

A3 LI
Aal & Aa3 Al & A3 Lower SESPAR 4zt
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
T BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
13,616,860 23,809,336 15,150,997 7,729,268 9,791,483 70,097,944
207,630 1,856,312 - - - 2,063,942
- 842,909 397,410 - - 1,240,319
3,233,647 205,116 241,638 - - 3,680,401
17,058,137 26,713,673 15,790,045 7,729,268 9,791,483 77,082,606
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.1 EERE () 2.1 Credit risk (continued)
(BE) BEEBRNERSE (E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)
(&
TREREEEES The following tables present an analysis of impaired debt securities by issue rating. In
2 EATERAR AT o (A the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

FTEPRAINIE T A
4 BT NS
A

e o
2017
FRIEME Hr:
Carrying values REt R
Of which
A3 PIF accumulated
Aal Z# Aa3 Al E A3 Lower SESTAR g8zt  impairment
Aaa Aalto Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
BT AT BET AT AT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SR ERGR Loans and
receivables - - - - 3,753,086 3,753,086 23,416
Hrp o HEPE(EAER  Of which
accumulated
impairment
allowances - - - - 23,416 23,416
2016
HRHIE Hrr e
Carrying values FRET B R
Of which
A3 DI'F accumulated
Aal & Aa3 Al # A3 Lower SESFAR HE= impairment
Aaa Aal to Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
e TH AT BT AT BT b T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SR ERGR Loans and
receivables - - - - 3,519,496 3,519,496 15,424
Hrp: ZHEPE(EAER  Of which
accumulated
impairment
allowances - - - - 15,424 15,424
B 2017 &£ 12 A 31 As at 31 December 2017, there were no impaired certificates of deposit and no overdue
H » J8HBUE FisE debt securities and certificates of deposit (2016: Nil).
KRR a2 s
75 Ko FEskEg (2016 4F ¢

) -
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MR (&)
2. SRiERREHE (&)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 HiEER 2.2 Market risk

T 5 L g 2 15 R < il T 25
EE (PR~ AR~ RSUH
& ~ PR ) BN
HRASINE ~ FIIZR - ESERIPS
EEESY=RIEREREER =AY =
SEARERMTARHIIR - AR
9] R 2 o ) T 55 L
4 o R U B R Y P
fhy -

TS E BT B AR - 2ARR
A5 [ Y T e e 47 R 4
SEISERRARNS > (REESEERY
JoR e 7 B o) P2 LA B B
FB - AEHE SRS
ATREEECE AV TSR - (e
BRI RRE -

A SR N P o
ElalRAVEH TS E R &
FGLRHEE THERE
HERE mEEEASMN
TS5 R R IeRE B > 5 =
e B HHE - HREEE
fr2AEHEEEHEA
RIET HHEHE 8
B 2% A A [ 4 T R
DUk B B B R AN PR BT
I A HECREE AR NI By
35 g S P A T HE =2
KA - BRI -
HEI E i A mREE
% S8 Y e e R A8 1T B
72 E R R R A
EBEE AR ERE
R R IR AR - FR R Al =
[EEHARRE - (f
) E AL A B B e
P - By H R TS R e
PREFSRITIE L - A E A A
FY TS E B S B -

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
between risk and return.

The Group's objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy growth of the treasury
business, by effective management of potential market risk in the Group’s business,
according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on the
basis of a well-established risk management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and Risk Management Committee, Senior Management and
functional units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market
risk. The risk management units are responsible for assisting Senior Management to
perform their day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and
compliance of management policies and limits of the Group, to ensure that the aggregate
and individual market risks are within acceptable levels. Independent units are assigned to
monitor the risk exposure against risk limits on a daily basis, together with profit and loss
reports submitted to Senior Management on a regular basis, while limit excess will be
reported to Senior Management at once when it occurs. NCB (China) sets up independent
risk monitoring teams to monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and submit
management information and reports to the Bank on a regular basis.
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M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRRl EHE (8) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 msEERE (&) 2.2 Market risk (continued)

N EE E 2 E T R S The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
TR SREE » FH A ERA] ~ 51 control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but not limited to VAR
B~ BEHI R 2 6] T 35 L (Value-at-Risk), Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis
[ - F SR SIS EEE Point Value). To meet management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are
BLFEEARFRA RS E ~ 1k classified into four levels, and are approved by the Risk Management Committee, Asset
TEAR ~ BAR ~ BRI and Liability Management Committee or Senior Management respectively. Treasury
DR BR R S (L BE g business units are required to conduct their business within approved market risk
{H) % - THEEFEEEA indicators and limits.

IREEGLE AR E B

Vu{E gk > o> Bl R E
HEEg AEAREH
ZEENSEEEEAE
#iAE B BALAERAE
1Y T 5 R B 4 A PR B
FEIPFHIRET -

(A) B (A) VAR

75 B ER g B The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the Risk
& — s E g o Management Committee and Senior Management on a periodic basis. The Group
FEHEEEEHEEE adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model, using a historical simulation approach
gilSEEE A S and two years of historical market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and the
& o REEEHYG— Bank over one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR
Y s (e Ay limit of the Group and the Bank.

R SRR - DL

BE2EFE R T HY

B2  5HH99%

BEEAP T RLIRF

AP A SR M S T e

ASRATHYE R E > AL
R EAEERIARTT
F e (E R
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MR (&)
2. SRiERREHE (&)

2.2 miEERE (#)
(A B&E (8)

2.2 Market risk (continued)
(A) VAR (continued)
TR A E

i 7 5 L B i B Y
R "

Group.

2. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure® of the

e £ g

5 |R12H31H e {EEE HEEE W PeRE

At Minimum for Maximum for Average for

Year |31 December the year the year the year

AT BT T BETT O BT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

S ESTTS e g (E VAR for all market risk 2017 1,501 658 2,509 1,454
2016 2,008 466 2,670 1,615

PR R JeR o 2 e (L VAR for foreign exchange risk 2017 605 382 2,517 1,252
2016 1,998 354 2,675 1,535

FllZ R 2 JE b VAR for interest rate risk 2017 816 92 1,302 464
2016 215 145 723 348

7o o JE > A 2 VAR for commodity risk 2017 373 - 378 154
2016 - - 128 44

B Note:

1. B 5 4/ DR 45 49 M i 1
HYEgAE

2. P8 i SRS RO A
2016 4 11 H
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1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.

2. Position in commodity since Nov-2016.
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2. SRiERREHE (&)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 TEER (8)
(A) EBRE (8D

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)

e 28 I e {2 B
17 45 JE\ & /Y — JH
PR AR

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be viewed in the context of
its limitations. For example:

PR - Bl

- RS SR — the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events may not
55t R A B AR encompass all potential events, particularly those which are extreme in nature;
R EE B R PR A A

REHIRAYIEI -
F IR — LB Ui 55
s

- —REHEIEETE
73 7B RS P A B
By LE—H
WEIR SRS - B
T (B s R b BE 52
ESl A
b - JCHAETER
HFERR(EET - FTAE
KREAE—RFAH
BN = ST
FrAEEE |

REES - EHEA
9% E f5 K P
B BIRAESEE
It A5 K S BL AP
=OE A
Ei= VY4

— the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or
hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of
severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or
hedge all positions fully;

— the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account losses
that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and

- B EEDE — VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business
[ &8 S BS Ay 0E and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

Bt REE > N
JE S A — E S
2 5y B B A 1Y J

b -
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 TEER (8)
(A EEE (8D

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) VAR (continued)

RGBT T R
b (E 75 R R IR
o Hit - HE TR
T3S B R PR A
DURYAl 708 2 B
EAREEMEN TS
e\ - TR EE S
R R [ R
b R 2% e i e 12 2
Pt 8 B9 80 RG 14
> DURCBIRE SR
FFE ST - 4011997
o P < L % DA R
2008:E:FlHHEF -

(B) SMEEER

KIEFHNEERA
ESEPEET =T
FARBELHE
W o RECRINAE R R
HRAE OR R AE T 32
K> AEEA AT
W PR (pIansss &
JEAE AR AR ) 15 Ryl
ETE - I Atk
BITH D [E —
BRI EEME R
$AIC - A H A S
bE &Y (BILDSN R
) BN S
BT EE A HY SP IR
ez

(B)

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators and limits
to assess and manage the market risk not covered by VAR. The market risk stress
testing includes sensitivity testing on changes in risk factors with various degrees of
severity, as well as scenario analysis on historical events including the 1997 Asian
Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly
the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of
the Group is managed at an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit)
are used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the
gap between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts
(e.g. FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 miEERE (#)
(B) SNEREE (&)

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(B) Currency risk (continued)

NRYI A S E AN
HER S - JFHER

2 B st A R

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising
from trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the
completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position.

EEZ EEINERE
FE IR RREE
BINEE L &E
IGEEI R =N
2017
AT TEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAdyMEE AN
ET Other Total
us AR® foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
HEEE Spot assets 87,459,891 154,080,434 11,661,967 253,202,292
T EE Spot liabilities (89,716,626)  (146,133,803) (12,057,840) (247,908,269)
EHIE A Forward purchases 14,502,233 4,537,116 3,693,458 22,732,807
EHIE Forward sales (12,446,022) (11,196,755) (3,269,094) (26,911,871)
(51) /Ef%$%8  Net (short)/long position (200,524) 1,286,992 28,491 1,114,959
sEREMEE R TR Net structural position 9,437,640 9,577,159 - 19,014,799
2016
BB TTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
HAtr s PAN Lk
I Other Total
us Ak foreign foreign
Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
HEEE Spot assets 89,820,749 116,285,504 8,951,419 215,057,672
HTEE Spot liabilities (73,408,148)  (114,083,563) (6,962,887) (194,454,598)
EHIE A Forward purchases 24,235,532 18,169,822 2,851,778 45,257,132
EHIE Forward sales (38,954,759) (20,994,854) (4,819,645) (64,769,258)
&/ () #5548  Net long/(Short) position 1,693,374 (623,091) 20,665 1,090,948
SR E T Net structural position 121,810 8,554,006 - 8,675,816

115



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 mEERE (8)
(C) FIREER

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk

F 2 b 2 H5 R A
FIR - BEA R
MRESHEERRG AL
SR ] AE L ER

i3 ey ik
BERZRE A%
] g 1) 4 o B 2K 9
F A SR
B SSEEREE
SRR B Ry -

- FIZREETEER: &
7E B2 (A E
H ek E R T E A&
PRATRESERC - #E
T 57 8875 A1 LU
A

- FZAE R -
[ 52 7 1 7 R 5k
ERE > CHE
B W 2 T {3
BN A T E AR
5] — AT E 8
] LA [R] Y S
(o

g 3 =l & R
b - UG
HIFPITARD)
[EE=RERUESLLON
BB EEES
BHEE K

- FE R B
R AERFE
%IEEW % B
g E%ﬁ@ﬁj

GUEMEME
jﬁfﬂﬂ/ﬁﬁﬁum

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising from
movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural. The major types of
interest rate risk from structural positions are:

- Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets and liabilities
that may affect net interest income;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the yield on
assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts within the same
repricing period;

- Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may have an adverse impact
on net interest income or economic value; and

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or off-balance sheet
items that can cause a change in the cash flows of assets and liabilities.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 mEERE (8)
(©) FiEkE (&)

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

A o P R
EFER AR
JoE e B o R 92 L
REEE S gt
By CERAT IR A R
W EHEEER) > BE
BEEHEZAEGR
BT E R E A
RIERVE - M
BEHE EE =R
JEbREH - EEE
RAVECE T > W
EHEHEER
HERZ S GhE
HH HI R e b
BT gfEErR
PR B 2 B B B
oo EEEHY
% BT A AR
FIPREE - 5FAh H AR
BHEAM VPR
ST AR I e
BUR B IR T IS
W R E L PR
VB B 2 S
AR 2= o oy P
EE

The Group'’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk management.
The Asset and Liability Management Committee exercises its oversight of interest rate
risk in accordance with the “Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy”
approved by Risk Management Committee. Financial Management Division is
responsible for interest rate risk management. With the cooperation of the Treasury
Division, Financial Management Division assists the Asset and Liability Management
Committee to perform day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but
are not limited to, the formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies,
setting of risk indicators and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of
the compliance with policies and limits, and submission of interest rate risk management
reports to the Management and Risk Management Committee.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 HsEEkE (8) 2.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIxmbz (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
75 [E 3% o 3R i The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor

b fE AR s SR A -
Prseal - 5~ B
U 2 ) A =R
b o F 2 b FE AR
PR A FEE AR
PAEETHER T ~ A
REREERE - A
Wy~ OB BB E
(PVBP) ~ J$FI S8z
BIELAR(NI) ~ €O
EEZBIEFREY)
%o ME g -
F S 5 AR A PR
HE > =4
3 ) E e P
BE - BEAMRE
HEHG KT EE]
HREAL A - RIEF
R & EB
iz A AE F 3R Ja b
o AR PR A i = A B
JEAARHZERS - A5
B SR AT MR
S BT S AT 0
fof] LA 7R e AT L
e A R Tk
Sl HBEE R FIZR
JE\Bg > A5 FEIRAT
1 25 o e B 2 A
IR s - Wit
i A BT BT
B EERITH R
b EAGEE
A e HE A
A -

and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but are not limited to,
repricing gap limits, basis risk, duration, price value of a basis point (“PVBP”), net
interest income sensitivity ratio (“NI1”), economic value sensitivity ratio (“EV”), monitored
on a regular basis. The indicators and limits are classified into three levels, which are
approved by the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability Management
Committee and Deputy Chief Executive of Middle-office respectively. Risk-taking
business units are required to conduct their business within the boundary of the interest
rate risk limits. Before launching a new product or business in the banking book, the
relevant departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the
adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact on interest rate risk
noted during the risk assessment process will be submitted to Risk Management
Committee for approval.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 wmRERE (&) 2.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIEEE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

R EOR g b & NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net interest
(NI A 4% 775 {8 {E R income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk indicators. The
HLL R (EV) [ L F] former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest income as a
AR ) S A percentage to the projected net interest income for the year. The latter assesses the
SUVONGI- Y impact of interest rate movement on economic value (i.e. the net present value of cash
s B AEEE flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items discounted using market interest
i) 2 i B Y R rate) as a percentage to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the Risk Management
JE B EAE - g = Committee on these two indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book
IR S By LB 5+ interest rate risk.

AR WA G

FEFHIF R R LA

FEEER (R H A
RE(LHIRITLRE
B ECEE ISR
ITRATEE Ak
RN EF TR &
ST FEE R B
15 i B A R B R
Eb- ERK?E%@%%
G Ry F A R Ak
TEFRAE > FIAR AR
PRI AR ERITIR
FIR M -

KEHEKHE SRS The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking book interest
M F0BE 3 M0 3K 75 rate risk that the Group would face under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses
o FHEARF R T and stress tests are also used to assess the impact on net interest income arising from
SRITHR AT RE K 211y the optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.

HIZRE g - 175 504

AR 7 H0 3 [ B

R EFERE

R e P

PE R R AT

FIEW AR E -
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 wmRERE (&) 2.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FI=xmbz (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
R E B R The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi in terms of
IT~ ZETC SN B interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2017, if HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi market
RE i o e 2017 interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel upward shift of the yield curve in relevant
F12H31H currency with other variables held constant, the sensitivities on net interest income over
HIC FEIT AR a twelve-month period and on reserves for the Group would have been as follows:
HIUS % A 4 AT
% 100 {EEE: -
FOAL R ZE A
T HWEERE 12
[EREERPEREINSN N
Je S (o 0 60 RN P
Wr:
12 A 31 H¥RAK 12 @A
AR RWA RS
Impact on net interest income 12 B 31 HEH Ry
over the next twelve months Impact on reserves
at 31 December at 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016

BETT BT BETT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT HK Dollar 347,955 344,852 (203,225) (145,477)
EIT US Dollar (4,340) (65,468) (294,617) (239,489)
ANEREi# Renminbi (62,200) (109,140) (463,945) (283,703)
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)
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2.2 HisEEkE (8) 2.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIEEE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Ll E SR The overall positive impact on net interest income of the above currencies has
WA I E increased when compared with 2016 and is mainly because of the narrowed short term
Zitr 2016 FH0FE negative repricing gaps in US Dollar and Renminbi. Reserves would have been reduced
EHPETRAR because of the expected reduction in valuation of available-for-sale securities due to a
W L5 g () 4 B A ) parallel shift up of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The reduction of reserves is
RPN AR UL % increased compared with 2016 because the sizes of HK Dollar and Renminbi
FiTEl - [EI6 > ATk available-for-sale securities in capital market are increased.

EErgRHmE

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several assumptions,
including but not limited to the change in the correlation between interest rates of
relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest rates, the absence of actions that
would be taken to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge
accounting, all positions being assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of
products in which actual repricing date differs from contractual repricing date or
products without contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the
Group’s overall interest rate risk exposures.
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 miEER (%)
(©) FiEE: (&)

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

TR T AR
12 H 31 HZ#&
AR NI R
e A HE © 2N DA
HAEY IR EE R &
8 WAZ ELIEETE
FRHHEEI H (B
BRE RAE) 0¥ -

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate risk
as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.

2017
—F =% TR
—fEAR =@EA  +=EA —EHE HEEME Non-
Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over interest- HH
1 month months months years 5years bearing Total
BETT BETT EETIRT BETT BBtk A% BT
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000
B Assets
[ IR & R R RURTT B oAt Cash and balances with banks
BRIEREISSER and other financial institutions 66,413,742 - - y - 1,322,019 67,735,761
TESRT R M R —= Placements with banks and
+{HH N FH 2 B other financial institutions
e maturing between one and
twelve months - 5,621,865 492,558 - - - 6,114,423
AEE(EET AR 2 SRl Financial assets at fair value
B through profit or loss 565,482 652,170 2,888,736 35,895 - - 4,142,283
ITEERMTE Derivative financial instruments - - - . - 400,843 400,843
B AR Advances and other accounts 142,272,107 52,264,644 34,966,908 4,878,812 314,320 - 234,696,791
BREE Financial investments
- ke - Available-for-sale 23,016,250 19,360,064 31,118,265 29,812,306 718,586 15,156 104,040,627
- FEEFIHH - Held-to-maturity - - 365318 3,091,869 - - 3,457,187
- ERREWGK - Loans and receivables . N 620,824 3.132,262 B - 3753086
KeEE Investment properties . : - . - 302,702 302,702
Ik ~ M R Properties, plant and equipment - - . - - 7386981 7,386,981
Hir&E (EFERERIEE Other assets (including deferred
&) tax assets) - - - - - 3,031,454 3,031,454
HEE Total assets 232,267,581 77,898,743 70,452,609 40,951,144 1,032,906 12,459,155 435,062,138
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2. SrRlEEEE (8)

2.2 miEER (%)
(©) FiEE: (&)
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2017
—= =% TR
—fEAR =@EA +=EA —EHE  BHENME Non-
Up to 1to 3 3 to 12 1to5 Over interest- 4a=t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BETT BTt EBlRTT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions 22,242,224 2,961,712 2,122,584 - - 408,987 27,735,507
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 2,092,997 2,225,148 27,398 - - - 4,345,543
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 397,796 397,796
Deposits from customers 188,163,251 54,607,277 61,810,259 8,643,710 71,964 12,119,178 325,415,639
Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue - 2,960,347 116,337 3,704,524 - - 6,781,208
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities) 3,003,407 1,002,744 7,374,876 630,846 29,972 6,255,520 18,297,365
Total liabilities 215,501,879 63,757,228 71,451,454 12,979,080 101,936 19,181,481 382,973,058
Interest sensitivity gap 16,765,702 14,141,515  (998,845) 27,972,064 930,970 (6,722,326) 52,089,080
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 mgEER (8D
(©) FiZmkx (%)

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2016
—% =5 AEHE
—{HAA =EH +=EF —EEFE  AFMLE Non-
Up to 1to3 3 to 12 1to5 Over interest- 4=t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BT BT AT BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
[EETFIR 4 R AERRTT L i Cash and balances with banks
SRR S e and other financial institutions 50,470,449 - - - - 1,857,134 52,327,583
TESRT R H AR — 2 Placements with banks and
1l H N EHIE other financial institutions
bi'd maturing between one and
twelve months - 4,552,714 10,126,985 - - - 14,679,699
AREE(EET AR 2 £ Financial assets at fair value
BiE through profit or loss 210,443 2,217,212 1,252,746 - - - 3,680,401
FESmTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 896,476 896,476
B HA RS Advances and other accounts 126,655,688 26,491,174 34,357,922 4,455,523 157,070 2,215 192,119,592
SREE Financial investments
- H R - Available-for-sale 11,387,979 15,290,801 20,667,974 22,009,605 741,585 13,381 70,111,325
- A EEEH - Held-to-maturity - 475,559 426,416 1,161,967 - - 2,063,942
- B EER - Loans and receivables 115,373 - 1,461,965 3,182,477 - - 4,759,815
&Y Investment properties - - - - - 383,830 383,830
WIS - 2301 Rt Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 6,929,407 6,929,407
HitrZE (EFERERIEE Other assets (including deferred
) tax assets) - - - - - 980,639 980,639
BEEH Total assets 188,839,932 49,027,460 68,294,008 30,809,572 898,655 11,063,082 348,932,709
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. SrRlEEEE (8)

2.2 mgEER (8D
(©) FiZmkx (%)
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities)

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

2016

—F =% AEE

—EAR =EAH +=E@F —ERE AFME Non-
Up to 1to3 3 to 12 1t05 Over interest- 4t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
AT BNTIT BWETor BWTor BWToT BTt BRNTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
12,774,352 5,311,595 11,947,531 416,732 30,450,210
1,880,498 816,180 526,778 - 3,223,456
934,244 934,244
143,254,320 48,321,171 46,879,361 1,631,983 17,440,695 257,527,530
541,378 554,559 - 1,095,937
8,046,649 804,515 1,839,269 22,513 5615 6,297,803 17,016,364
165,955,819 55,253,461 61,734,317 2,209,055 5,615 25,089,474 310,247,741
22,884,113  (6,226,001) 6,559,691 28,600,517 893,040 (14,026,392) 38,684,968
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I EENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 RErEsRE 2.3 Liquidity risk
RENE e bR T Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or pay due
R AR TR E 4 2L obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity
JESETE R e E T2 risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity
HHZT MR RERZ needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
AR BB Z AR - A cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to act as the
RS ER RN E lender of last resort.

BRI - HERETE
HAE I S 5T
HREDRAEE ~ W5
TR SRIEL A -
RMENERFK  EH
U R T AR R
A REMES R > B
HYR A Ay IEE - 7]
IR R A AN
METEEFHFE -
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I EENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 RErELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

REEERREE S
FrryEEE - Bl

Ay - DLEH
HIRA A E R ER
RN R RSN EB I
it - EHR R
Rz - AEEDE
R FHRTE SR
TR TR AR E
DR A PA R ZE
Bl AGOH - TECRIZIE
TR ATE B AR - A
SRR A 1] R e R
IIERTHRBIE S H
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o R E AR
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Il > FH AR
YR {8 < (T T
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HyEn & e -
FHEDREN A B T

TIESETHE] -

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the liquidity of
on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite
to achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the
Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in
place, the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market. According to different term maturities
and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its
asset structure (including loans, bonds investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain
sufficient liquid assets which provides adequate funds in support of normal business
needs and ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in
case of emergency. The Group is committed to diversify the source of funds and the use
of funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent triggering
liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when problem occurred in one
concentrated funding source. The Group has established intra-group liquidity risk
management guideline to manage the liquidity funding among different entities within the
Group, and to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan
commitments and derivatives. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management
strategy to cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks,
etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plan.
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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Risk Management Committee (RMC) is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk
management, and assumes the ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by RMC, the Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) exercises its
oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in accordance
with risk appetite and policies as set by RMC. Financial Management Division is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s liquidity risk. It cooperates with Treasury Division to
assist the ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR”"), loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative
Cash Outflow (“MCO”) and liquidity buffer asset portfolio. The Group applies cash flow
analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal conditions and also
performs a liquidity stress test (including institution specific, general market crisis and
combined crisis) at least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand
various severe liquidity crises. Also, the Assets and Liabilities Management System is
developed to provide data and the preparation for regular management reports to facilitate
liquidity risk management duties.
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems
and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in 2016, the Group has
implemented behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to
enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In
cash flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to
on-balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items
(such as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities
and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual
maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet changes.
The Group establishes MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 day maximum
cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to
assess if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order to
achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31 December 2017, before taking the
cash inflow through the sale of outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the
Bank’s 30 day cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow amounting to HK$509,487,000
(2016: HK$457,877,000) and was in compliance with the internal limit requirements.
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis
scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of institution specific
and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe
liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown
rate of loan commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and
rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable
securities. As at 31 December 2017, the Group was able to maintain a positive cash flow
under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing
needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a
liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities
issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities or multilateral
development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or marketable securities issued or
guaranteed by non-financial corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or
above to ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2017,
the Bank's liquidity cushion (before haircut) was HK$36,001,595,000 (2016:
HK$28,653,565,000). A contingency plan is being established which details the conditions
to trigger the plan based on stress test results and early warning indicators, the action
plans and relevant procedures and responsibility of various departments.
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective from 1
January 2015, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised institution by the
HKMA, is required to calculate LCR on consolidated basis. During the year of 2017, the
Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than 80%.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to request from the Group
additional collateral if they have concerns about the Group’s creditworthiness.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process
will be reported to Risk Management Committee for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management policies. On the
basis of the Group’s uniform policy, the principal banking subsidiary develops its own
liquidity management policies according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own
liquidity risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk management processes
independently, and reports to the Group’s Management on a regular basis.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £RIEEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) RETEEELER (A) Liquidity coverage ratio
2017 EFEEHE
2017 quarter ended
128531 H 98 30H 6 5 30H 3831H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
RENEE E LRI Average value of
HE liquidity
coverage ratio 159.33% 168.97% 171.71% 138.03%
2016 HERREEHE
2016 quarter ended
12H31H 9H30H 6 H30H 3H31H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
TREN M & LR Average value of
HME liquidity
coverage ratio 141.78% 165.40% 145.26% 130.84%
BN E LR The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean
SEHEEENZE of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
F Y B8 A H 4% calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.
ERERREMEEE
LR AV BT 2T 8
e 5 TR S B M AR 5
Z BTN
HIEH R 7 A RIE R
55 -
e EELRE The liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which comprises the
PIsEEEEETE - o positions of the Bank and the subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with
R CGRITHE ORE) the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
PE) FHAT AT
K&E R EZ
EAEIMH
BRI EZELL The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures is available under
R E T ER section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.
AR AT E

www.nch.com.hk
FETENEE R

-
B,

=
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HAseERZF=MsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. SrRlEEEE (8)
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2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis
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Assets

Cash and balances with banks and

other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other

financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Held for trading
— Debt securities
— Certificates of deposit
Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
— Advances to customers
— Trade bills
Financial investments
— Available-for-sale
— Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
- Others
— Held-to-maturity
— Debt securities
— Certificates of deposit
— Loans and receivables
— Debt securities
- Others
— Equity securities
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

2. Financial risk management (continued)

The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date.

2017
—= =

B —EAR =@EA +=MERA —ZEAF HFEME W FEE
Oon Up to 1to 3 3to 12 1to5 Over HEg 4zt
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
blcd b bl b bl bl b bl
T T T Tt T T T T
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
28,898,808 38,836,953 - - - - - 67,735,761
- - 5,501,781 612,642 - - - 6,114,423
- 505,774 592,845 2,830,221 35,895 - - 3,964,735
- 59,708 59,325 58,515 - - - 177,548
320,883 9,175 34,941 35,844 - - - 400,843
15,435,181 10,490,128 10,551,107 56,215,184 99,351,743 40,689,875 437,304 233,170,522
52 215679 349,354 528,684 432,500 - - 1,526,269
- 9,630,379 4,960,998 18,118,138 33,855,225 718,586 - 67,283,326
- 1,110,485 1,903,627 13,115,663 3,181,852 - - 19,311,627
- 10,037,544 6,302,142 1,090,832 - - - 17,430,518
- 1,417 - 371,071 2,927,971 - - 3,300,459
- 1,041 - 600 155,087 - - 156,728
- - - 620,824 3,132,262 - - 3,753,086
- - - - - - 15,156 15,156
- - - - - - 302,702 302,702
- - - - - - 7,386,981 7,386,981
322,577 2,240,547 2,399 223,227 102,674 - 140,030 3,031,454
44,977,501 73,138,830 30,258,519 93,821,445 143,175,209 41,408,461 8,282,173 435,062,138
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) EAH T (&) (B) Maturity analysis (continued)
2017
—z =
—ERRN ={@EA +=@A —ZHE HEMUE AHEE
E#A Up to 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over B =t
On demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
e e by by bt bt b1 bt
v v Tt Tt T T Tt T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
j=Ti-d Liabilities
ST R A S RbikS 2 (730 Deposits and balances from
e hEER banks and other financial
institutions 1,252,775 17,791,352 2,960,550 2,619,318 2,456,925 654,587 - 27,735,507
AN ES(LE ASE25 2 4R Financial liabilities at fair value
Al through profit or loss - 2,092,997 2,225,148 27,398 - - - 4,345,543
THEeMm TR Derivative financial instruments 99,166 155,539 74,467 68,624 - - - 397,796
EEFR Deposits from customers 125,552,531 74,369,470 54,918,461 60,348,321 10,154,892 71,964 - 325,415,639
CETEAE5NENE  Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue - - 2,960,347 116,337 3,704,524 - - 6,781,208
HAIRIER R (FIFERER  Other accounts and provisions
FRIE R B IEFRTE A ) (including current and
deferred tax liabilities) 4,097,624 3,777,774 1,281,587 7,524,167 1,580,162 36,037 14 18,297,365
BEREE Total liabilities 131,002,096 98,187,132 64,420,560 70,704,165 17,896,503 762,588 14 382,973,058
MEE SO Net liquidity gap (86,024,595) (25,048,302) (34,162,041) 23,117,280 125,278,706 40,645,873 8,282,159 52,089,080

134



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. SrRlEEEE (8)
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Assets

Cash and balances with banks and

other financial institutions

Placements with banks and other

financial institutions maturing

between one and twelve months

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Held for trading
— Debt securities
— Designated at fair value
through profit or loss
— Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
— Advances to customers
— Trade bills
Financial investments
— Available-for-sale
— Debt securities
- Certificates of deposit
— Others
— Held-to-maturity
— Debt securities
— Loans and receivables
— Debt securities
— Others
— Equity securities
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2016
—F =5

B —EAN =@H +ZEB —EHF HEEMLE NHEE
On Up to 1to3 3to012 1to5 Over HHA 4t
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
22,715,971 29,611,612 - - - 52,327,583
- 4,552,714 10,126,985 - - 14,679,699
210,443 2,217,212 1,011,108 - - 3,438,763
- - - 241,638 - - 241,638
336,361 62,105 150,734 347,276 - - 896,476
6,757,582 6,710,603 10,567,311 36,092,176 85,944,627 39,903,860 478,279 186,454,438
1,780 1,427,406 1,967,532 2,268,436 - - 5,665,154
3,884,572 10,733,506 9,178,135 22,886,731 739,120 - 47,422,064
4,504,881 11,055 7,612,342 2,778,873 - - 14,907,151
1,673,061 1,679,707 4,415,961 - - 7,768,729
- 348,456 553,519 1,161,967 - 2,063,942
- - 1,240,319 - - 1,240,319
115,373 - 221,646 3,182,477 - 3,519,496
- - - 13,381 13,381
- - - 383,830 383,830
- - - 6,929,407 6,929,407
357,748 328,403 157,587 85,150 (41,271) 93,022 980,639
30,169,442 48,528,459 32,385,814 73,394,691 115,913,404 40,642,980 7,897,919 348,932,709
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2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

HAMRER A (EEREMNTIER Other accounts and provisions

EIERIH S

2016
—F =%
Bl —M@EAN =WA FSEA —2AF AFEME HEE
On Upto 1to3 3to 12 1t05 Over H A 4t
demand 1 month months months years 5years Indefinite Total
et bl bt b bt b bt b
Tt Tt Tt T Tt T Tt T
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$O000
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions 1,331,420 10,457,704 4,835,461 11,125,398 2,700,227 - 30,450,210
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 1,880,498 816,180 526,778 - - 3,223,456
Derivative financial instruments 110,954 25,609 138,511 535,864 123,306 - 934,244
Deposits from customers 102,970,686 55,417,442 50,119,358 47,365,113 1,654,931 - 257,527,530
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - - - 541,378 554,559 - 1,095,937
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities) 8,633,899 1,373,150 1,181,545 4,878,344 948,759 667 - 17,016,364
Total liabilities 113,046,959 69,154,403 57,091,055 64,972,875 5,981,782 667 - 310,247,741
(82,877,517) (20,625,944) (24,705,241) 8,421,816 109,931,622 40,642,313 7,897,919 38,684,968

Net liquidity gap
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) #HAH M (&) (B) Maturity analysis (continued)

At BHE H 435875 The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
J IR CPRATSE (I E8) provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets such
BRI MBI as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than one month
4l o AREE A as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different payments or
Nig# 1 [HE2E instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is reported as
E > ISR R A5 overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to the residual
2555k TR & maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the amount is
E o EHNEAR [EIEEE reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if
HoHEEZE any.

& HAZEEPE

5% 3 B 2 1 77 H 1R

TRz - HAth AR E 5

ZE S T AR
FIERIHPR 798 - B R
EHEGEEZHEE
FHEEE > AR
AR By AR EE H
iy o BMTIRZE
7E E B A 7] 45
B (AFE) -

¥ e B HA H HHE The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is disclosed in order to
BEss2othE R comply with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The disclosure
G (R () does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.

FRI) Z AERBRR ST

e FRH - PfEH R

R IS5 5

HZFHY -
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2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December for

non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.

2017
—& =
—ERAN =@B +-EA —FAEF AFEME FmE
Up to 1to3 3tol2 1to5 Over HEA 4t
1 month months months years  5years Indefinite Total
A s bl e A A s
Tt T Tt Tt Tt Tt T
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions 19,063,599 2,976,781 2,687,656 2,506,299 654,587 27,888,922
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 2,094,000 2,228,500 27,500 - - - 4,350,000
Deposits from customers 199,949,156 55,032,867 60,678,093 10,232,616 71,965 325,964,697
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - 2,997,241 119,916 4,456,732 - - 7,573,889
Other financial liabilities 7,468,414 1,019,882 7,336,935 626,725 36,036 14 16,488,006
Total financial liabilities 228,575,169 64,255,271 70,850,100 17,822,372 762,588 14 382,265,514
2016
—F =%
—{EAN =@A +=EA —ZAFE AEME RhE
Upto 1t03 3to12 1t05 Over HHH HaEt
1 month  months months years 5years Indefinite Total
A A A et g A A
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
Financial liabilities
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions 11,793,677 4,861,160 11,299,739 2,780,866 30,735,442
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 1,881,000 817,000 529,000 - - - 3,227,000
Deposits from customers 158,435,965 50,246,344 48,055,316 1,728,767 258,466,392
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - 556,295 579,673 - - 1,135,968
Other financial liabilities 9,812,259 802,538 4,820,369 62,468 667 15,498,301
Total financial liabilities 181,922,901 56,727,042 65,260,719 5,151,774 667 309,063,103

138



%) NCB #:f % k4t

M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £RIEEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 mehELEE (&) 2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
C) EEYNFHEHAE ST (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

ZRITHRBRER

(&)

(b) FHAETHEZ IS (b) Derivative cash flows
7t
R T AR The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by remaining
By 12 H 31 H contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that will
DU &5 & &9 5 HA be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments that
H% r2Z W4 will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an asset
T BFE T AR or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
RERZITESE undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at
R R R fair value.
MR ARG H
P1EeR TECR
mAMGBE
EBRE) - FRED
SETETEDIA
BTN TR
2 B2 1y FHA & 4H
35 R AR HTELHY
EEBRER o
B2 [E o R AR The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
BEEE T T4 4 mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments that
Fh T B ¥ A RE will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency
GBS EURNE swaps.
ARG R 21T
A THYH
BiEEEE R

Bl -
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
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2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows (continued)

2017
—% =%
—@HR  ZER B —EAS AELE
Up to 1to 3 3to 12 1to5 Over yE=t
1 month months months years 5years Total
i i i i b b
Fie Fie FE  Fr P Fit
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis 225,326 225,326
Derivative financial
instruments settled on
a gross basis
Total inflow 10,494,415 1,184,424 6,860,373 18,539,212
Total outflow (10,650,069) (2,176,030) (7,737,461) - (20,563,560)
2016
—F =%
—EAR  ZEA +oEA —EAF EEUE
Up to 1to3 3t012 1to5 Over HE=
1 month months months years 5 years Total
T T Tt T Tt Tt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Derivative financial
liabilities settled on a
net basis 220,874 (8,499) 212,375
Derivative financial
instruments settled
on a gross basis
Total inflow 22,242,268 11,910,851 18,004,474 52,157,593

Total outflow

(22,210,298) (13,025,286) (19,871,987)

- (55,107,571)
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)

(c) Off-balance sheet items

Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments as
at 31 December 2017 that the Group commits to extend credit to customers and
other facilities totalled HK$88,328,968,000 (2016: HK$91,641,576,000). Those
loan commitments can be drawn within one year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31 December
2017 totalled HK$34,730,406,000 (2016: HK$35,050,400,000) are maturing no
later than one year.
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 EAREH 2.4 Capital management
REHEAREHFH The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
B P A o7 B A [ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk

JE B AR AR R Y B A TS
JeIK» [IH R SR 2K
K[l - EE AR
Z A8 s AR
BEAGER AT A B
FTEEE LAORF R ~ [l
BB AT MR R P
fhy o

AR Ry
—EARNEAEHEL
SROMIFHZE R - FEEA]
PRt SR SR SR %
[EAVEIRS R B EEA
TERRHIER - BEA
EHZR A REEE
BB AT e - AL
5 B B P ik RT3
BTG &HEERIA
TEBEARUE # T

AR R BTN
SRR AT ER
857 3825 A B S ] LB
HRHER (S B R R A
3K {5 I P B R R
(F b st RA T S
ZRA B ARl B AR HE AT (S
SRR EAZDR /NS
15 & U R P e a1
e (SRR sT5E
ETE - AR EIBR AR (S
BffEREE A TEA
AEE M EHEREE A
LT EATK -

profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital
mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and controls on
capital management to support the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported
periods in respect of banking operation as further elaborated below.

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach to calculate
the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation exposures and the
internal ratings-based (securitisation) approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge for
its securitisation exposures. A small residual credit exposures are remained under the
standardised (credit risk) (“STC") approach. The Group has adopted the standardised credit
valuation adjustment (“CVA”") method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the
counterparty.

142



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 BAREE (8)

2.4 Capital management (continued)

AEEEE RN
AETEART EAME A
R — 5 g & A
FOR ARIECERTSR(E
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EEE Rt AR RIRE
G S U ] 7 2R Y
SRR AR - AR
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e ) atEART R ER T
JEB AT -

AR HEE(E
BRI Rt RA R
BRIEREBREAEIK -
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PR &2 RSB
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ZEHATES D MEEA
7R SRR P 1 %A 2
PSS ST RA
HE BT M E R E R
JEBG T AR BRI NE A » 7
111 3% T A 252 [ e K 32 2
P — SRR ~ ff
— A AR R R R4
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The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate the general
market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the
approval from the HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions pursuant to section 317C of the
Banking (Capital) Rules in the calculation of the market risk capital charge. The Group
continues to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to calculate the market
risk capital charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (“STO”) approach to calculate
the operational risk capital charge.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment process
(“ICAAP") to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process” in 2017. Based on the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar Il, ICAAP
has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured
or not adequately captured under Pillar I, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1
capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined.
Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been
established which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital
utilisation. The Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital management
and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation to the
overall risk profile.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 BREM (8) 2.4 Capital management (continued)

AN AREBEGESHEE In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted to the
EEAHE HEEAR Board for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the
EHZEOEFRESE implications of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return
Eaif - BB on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future
FoRmg ~ Bk [a - capital requirement is determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to
IRF - SRR - B ensure the Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align
SR o FE BT E A with its business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
T B MR B2 4 T TEHI return and capital adequacy.

RIRE AT K EATK

TR DRI SR AR 4R B

HHTEAT R R E R

MG ook
JE& > PR ~ Rl
AFE e AR P o

(A) BEGOERE (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation

B E A S The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of the Bank

R (SR1TE% and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking
(&R #HA) B4 (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance

SRAT R H My &E with HKFRSs.

[ E Z i A E]

GHEY - R TR EE T

1] - A7 B AR

et AR QAT & I S

AT -

144



%) NCB #:f % k4t

M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

2. SrRlEEEE (8)

2.4 BAEHE (8)

(A) BEBGOER ()

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

FFETE G s EHI &R The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of
G e consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of consolidation are as
BEHESGHE .
- follows:
PN B S A B 22 5
BT :
2017 2016
BEWEH B B BEARLEEH
g Name Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
AT AT HERETT HRETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEREIRTEAR Nanyang Commercial Bank
/NG| Trustee Limited 16,509 16,399 16,450 16,341
EFEEEEEARA Kwong Li Nam Investment
H] Agency Limited 4,752 4,024 4,137 4,026
FEEREFERIT (RELA) Nanyang Commercial Bank
BHIRAHE (Nominees) Limited 1,463 1,463 1,469 1,469
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2. SRIEREE (8)

2.4 BAEHE (8)
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Neither were there any subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting
scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of consolidation where the methods of
consolidation differ as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

(B) Capital ratio

2017 2016

CETL1 capital ratio
12.60% 13.97%
Tier 1 capital ratio 16.09% 13.97%
Total capital ratio 17.86% 15.85%
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 BAREE (8)
(B) EALER (8)

2.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

ARETEUL &R The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above
bhae 7 HUR R 1Y 47 capital ratios is analysed as follows:
& B AREHE S A
T
2017 2016
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR — AR A A ¢ BB CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
Fftifg
HESTHEEREE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
REME— SR A AN instruments 3,144,517 3,144,517
FPRE A Retained earnings 31,153,712 28,648,761
B S Disclosed reserves 8,468,546 6,885,557
BEEHIR 2 RS A e CET1 capital before regulatory deductions
—HEAR 42,766,775 38,678,835
HAEIEE—RE A B CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
FK
B % Valuation adjustments (11,037) (18,800)
EAIBRIRAERTH & (A Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities
PRIV (222,516) (100,652)
e Cash flow hedge reserve - 48,098
A EESENAE Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
R B (S P e risk on fair valued liabilities
B R RV (277) (2,983)
R4 Rz (B Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
KB R ) #ErTE revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and
(B E b AN B investment properties)
B (6,431,695) (6,026,176)
—NESR TR R s Regulatory reserve for general banking risks
s (2,529,788) (2,011,223)
S S R — AR A S Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital
B (9,195,313) (8,111,736)
LA — A CET1 capital 33,571,462 30,567,099
BN ER Additional Tier 1 capital 9,314,890 -
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MrgsRRMtsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. SRIEREE (8)

2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 BAREE (8)

2.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) EALER (8)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—IREA Tier 1 capital 42,886,352 30,567,099
THEAR B R RS Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
GEREGAZLEAT Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
ERRRAE R R —% reserve for general banking risks eligible for
PRATR R B R inclusion in Tier 2 capital 1,815,512 1,416,318
BB FIHY —4E AR Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,815,512 1,416,318
AR BEEA Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
hoEl& &S A ZRE Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
ZNGOIPSE g b U £ from the revaluation of land and buildings
YI(BRMSERR) (own-use and investment properties) eligible for
EITEEEAMESE inclusion in Tier 2 capital
SNSRI ren 2,894,262 2,711,779
AR AR EE AR Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital
KEEE 2,894,262 2,711,779
TARER Tier 2 capital 4,709,774 4,128,097
WER Total capital 47,596,126 34,695,196
4R A AL R AT The capital buffer ratios are analysed as
T follows:
#2017 48 #2016 4
12E31H 12 H31 [
At 31 December At 31 December
2017 2016
PrE4R T E AN LLR Capital conservation buffer ratio 1.250% 0.625%
G EEALLR Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.61% 0.32%
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 BREHE (8) 2.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) BEALER (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
RigE (SR1T% (& In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the phase-in from 2016 to 2019 of the
A FRATY > 74 2016 Capital Conservation Buffer (“CCB”) is designed to ensure banks build up capital
Z 2019 RSP outside periods of stress of 2.5% of risk-weighted assets(“RWAs”). The Countercyclical
S| APhEEEE Capital Buffer (“CCyB*) which is set on an individual country basis and is built up during
A ("CCBEEZE ) periods of excess credit growth to protect against future losses. The HKMA announced
H 2R IRTTIE a CCyB for Hong Kong of 1.25% and 1.875% of RWAs from 1 January 2017 and 1
ZERHASN - IR January 2018 respectively under the phase in arrangements of Basel Ill, equivalent to
g tEE R > 2.5% 2.5% once fully phased in.

ZER - HEER
EEA (TCCyB tb
) AEHERIE
FEREERE M
DIEEEE RBE
I B R AR AV R
% FEGREH
J3 0 A o s 3t 8 7
FH By 55 o ) 4 e
A>f 2017 1 A
1HK 201841 H
1 H#Ey A R b
IitE&EEZ 1.25%
K 1.875% - &
(BEBRBE=)

T B A Ay R

b o EE Z

2.5% -

BHEAB&EDN The additional information of capital disclosures is available under section “Regulatory
e & R AR Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.

KR T f H
www.nch.com.hk
b TEEERE ) —

BRI -
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
2. £REEEE (&) 2. Financial risk management (continued)

2.4 BREHE (8) 2.4 Capital management (continued)
(C) fafftL® (C) Leverage ratio

2017 2016
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
— B Tier 1 capital 42,886,352 30,567,099
FEFREER R Leverage ratio exposure 463,397,438 379,536,120
FERREER Leverage ratio 9.25% 8.05%
HRATER LRI 7 The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under section

Y4 78 BB R A A “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.ncb.com.hk.

w T W H
www.nch.com.hk
h TEEENEE ) —

BRI -
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
3. EENA&ENAMTE 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities

A LA R EEF B EER 15 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial

HWENWENEENAE statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
iR AV HHRSAERIZFE13 measurement”. The categorisation are determined with reference to the observability and
gk T ARERE NESR significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level input

WA RMEEREAN T - % that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
RS RSB T AR
FEIRZE Z T RER
P - AR EERE N AT
BHEPE Y RIREHRE

FREE

- E—jg4c fHEEERNAE - Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
BIEERE TSP o e liabilities. This category includes debt instruments issued by certain governments, certain
(RECHEL ) - B4 s exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious metals.

5 o7 BURF 3% 77 89 (5 7% T
o B THAR S0
GEIHEEE -

- BEIIES  TYENMEER - Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

TP E FH B B R = 4 (R 2= the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes

( [EIIFEE SR ps D (EET majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities and certificates of deposit with quote

EHEAEE) nyER from pricing services vendors. It also includes precious metals and properties with
a2 - [ Eak e insignificant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

TERE N AHICTE
G~ B E RS L ER
JEM BRI FRS 38 55 B 7
KRG o [FIF IR BRG] T
BTSN RET T A E
AR S RS o

- B THREEAMEER - Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

(ziee 35 lE0) s AN RS ES the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category includes equity investment,

( [EIREE g\ A EET derivatives and debt instruments with significant unobservable components. It also includes
EHEAEE) BN properties with significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

HZE - IEREEAEAR
A AT 2R N R AT R 1%
HTAETAEREBL
H o [FIRF R EEE B
HI TSN R T T R
BHISE -
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
3. BEEMABHIAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

$ DL R B AR R A S
WRIVEE N AR AR
G — R B AS
HHEHRAEEE (ER
HREALHETEFEY
8 RREHNER ) LIS
AEEA R EESZ ML
LY

31DAREHENSRT
=)

REEBILT BZHL
RAEEIBRIERIAE >
MINIER 261 JEEE - AV IR
HY 42 i B (7 T E A%
o B S PRI
1T AT 4RFE TS 2 A (E 45
RRERASEEE - H
ity S 2 R PP EL R A%
HAEENEESE - E
R A S5 T [0 B g
bEH -

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to ensure that
fair values are either determined or validated by control units independent of the front
offices. Control units have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation
results from front line businesses and all other significant fair value measurements. Specific
controls include verification of observable pricing inputs. Significant valuation issues are
reported to the Management.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEEMABHAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

31MAREMNENESHT

8 (8

B AT A BE T 5 JEHL
i AEEEE Lt
HEERMTEEL 5
B 2 5 (B A T <z
HEVAffE -

BN AL FTR A RY
T A > HAS ER A HE A
NEHESBEERRE
8~ IR - MR - REnE e
HE SEAERS ~ IRl ~ X5
TEEFZERHME - £
B R e A BT B 2R
FAERUN S8 -

M LA E LT s fh T B
ASERIEEITENT -

E7% LB R AFikEE
EF T BAYA BB A
ST ~ A B N AL
i {EL PR 7% B B s 2 ik Ay
7 5 e 18 = {0 P A 3R 3
EFUERLIIATITIHRIE ©
TR B RUAA A  — {E A
FTHETARARER 207 PA—
] 52 Bk T 355 AR
[ B Y T B R S B A
72 Z W AR B G IR 2 A
ST B pCR [E Y (5 E L
il - B LSRR ]
B g s B 2R A ]
BZRATTISEIEEE -

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine the fair
value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held by the
Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices,
volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable and
obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial instruments is as
below:

Debt instruments and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market prices from
exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow
technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation technique that measures present
value using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then discounts
these flows using a discount rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads
required by the market for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or
can be corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEEMABHIAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

3.1 PARESHENSET 3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
8 (&
PIAETHE Derivatives

BN GHITTAE TR A
KYEIFESNEE ~ AR B o
HY RS ~ s RS
- PTE TR AKIAIEE
& 98 bR RE IR B R A
SRR ERE A S E
FHEE - FrisE A eV 28
By W B Z A B 2R T
B - TTEZE N2
TR - (R - P {HAE
Bl - T B2 8
A2 ST TR 7T I 688
REEIEFERPIERL S
BRBAHARERE - W —
BLEENITAET RS
9 AN HERZEL R
L HRIE R B

KRB BN BT
ETREHTEEME
SRR S AR E AR - 3
Sl AU Sk PSS
B RHHTEELE
BHEEEZNH
¥ AR R
— X GETF IARATEH
FRCCT ~ SBR[l
9E °

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign exchange,
interest rate or commodity. The fair values of these contracts are mainly measured using
valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. The
inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable inputs include interest
rate, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and volatilities. Unobservable inputs such
as volatility surface may be used for less commonly traded option products which are
embedded in structured deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values
are determined based on broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”) are applied
to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market factors movement,
expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’'s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent on
expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(A) Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- Trading assets
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
Derivative financial
instruments
Available-for-sale financial
assets
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
- Equity securities
- Others

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
- Trading liabilities

Derivative financial
instruments

155

2017
E—Ek FE% FE=IE% HHET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BETIT AB%T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 4,142,283 - 4,142,283
327,009 73,834 - 400,843
- 86,594,953 - 86,594,953
- - 15,156 15,156
- - 17,430,518 17,430,518
- 4,345,543 - 4,345,543
100,377 297,419 - 397,796
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEEMABHIAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

31MAREMNENESHT
8 (8

(A) ARERIES (8D

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

2016
E—Igak EE E=IEh HEET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
ANEE R AR Financial assets at fair value
Z R E through profit or loss
SEGVEEE - Trading assets
—(H e 5 - Debt securities - 3,438,763 - 3,438,763
—FE R LA o fE S - Financial assets
{Eat ARz Z designated at fair value
BREE through profit or loss
AR - Debt securities - 241,638 - 241,638
PR TR Derivative financial
instruments 344,483 551,908 85 896,476
oL &R E Available-for-sale financial
assets
—(EHE T - Debt securities and
ke certificates of deposit - 62,329,215 - 62,329,215
—HeAnEE s - Equity securities - - 13,381 13,381
—HAth - Others - - 7,768,729 7,768,729
B i Financial liabilities
ANEE R A8 Financial liabilities at fair value
ZRiEE through profit or loss
XA E - Trading liabilities - 3,223,456 - 3,223,456
PR TR Derivative financial
instruments 123,638 810,606 - 934,244
REE GRVEE & There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the
AENENLESES Group during the year (2016: Nil).
—BEEE B
YRS (2016 4
i)
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEMAMBYIAMNME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)
3.1 PARMESHENSET 3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
H (&)

(B) E=EBHRAVHEE

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

B
2017
SRHEE
Financial assets
e TR Tt E SR E
O$%E) Available-for-sale
Derivative financial assets
Financial et
Instruments Equity Hitl,
(net) securities Others
BT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20171 H1H At 1 January 2017 85 13,381 7,768,729
ez Gains
- YassR - Income statement 749,775
- R EESRZ - Change in fair value of
AfEE L available-for-sale

securities 1,775 -
HA Purchases - 34,255,958

=t {E e Sales, redemptions and
maturity - (25,343,944)
B8R = JE AR Transfer out of Level 3 (85) -
2017 4F 12 H31 H At 31 December 2017 15,156 17,430,518

A 20174£12 H31 H

Total unrealised gains for

FrANERE ERE the year included in
et AU SRR income statement for
AU 48 %R financial assets held as

at 31 December 2017
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEMAENARE
(&)

3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

31 MARESENSMT

8 (8

(B) E=EBHRAVHEE

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

B (&)
2016
ERNEE
Financial assets
TTEER TR AT R
(73%8) Available-for-sale
Derivative financial assets
Financial Wi 25
Instruments Equity oAl
(net) securities Others
BT AT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#2016 1 H1H At 1 January 2016 - 4,613 472,067
Wz Gains
- fgaR - Income statement 85 - (26,305)
- HAtrgmliss - Other comprehensive
income
- At ESES - Change in fair value of
SafEE b available-for-sale
securities - (516) -
HA Purchases - 9,284 12,229,735
B EERER Sales, redemptions and
maturity - - (4,906,768)
#2016 £ 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2016 85 13,381 7,768,729

2016412 H 31 H

Total unrealised gains for

FrANERE ERE the year included in
et AU FRAIARE income statement for
AU 48 %R financial assets held as

at 31 December 2016
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
3. BEEMABHIAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

3.1 DAREENER T
8 (8

(B)

BoERRHAR
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A 2017 4 12 H 31
H % 2016 4 12 A
L H A EAE=E
G ER TR T A
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BTt Y 5 A

s
=z,

FF L ATt B
HYA LB 92 % AT fit
Eeiery B A EI 2P
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BCE A e E ATt
BHYAE » JlHE
FEFEME - AfE
B AR 2 ATEE
EBEER A FHE
FAEE AR -
R ER R AT
EIER D 5%
SIS A = T
Em At | Vs e
758,000 jT ( 2016
&0 669,000
L) e

FRF R B
UAIRPAARE i
> AR HE
TR+ HAPE
FUEHRATRERR A T8
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FHHE S Hit
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AEH TR
H IR P B SR
B R T HAYEL
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3.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, financial instruments categorised as level 3 are
mainly comprised of unlisted equity securities and other available-for-sale financial
instruments.

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity shares are determined with
reference to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as average of the
price/earning ratios of comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are
not available. The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning ratios of
appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset value of the underlying
equity investments increased/decreased by 5%, the Group’s other comprehensive
income would have increased/decreased by HK$758,000 (2016: HK$669,000).

For certain illiquid others financial assets classified as available-for-sale, the Group
obtains valuation quotations from counterparties which may be based on unobservable
inputs with significant impact on the valuation. Therefore, these instruments have been
classified by the Group as level 3. The Group has established internal control
procedures to control the Group’s exposure to such financial instruments.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEEMABHIAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

3.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

3.2 JEDAN RfEET BRI R

IR

DR — R E R
BB T S E R
7] < il T B 2 Bk AT
fili - NN Z 55 R e
HH S DU R I A
BEEMTREZARE -

BB 1 R SRAT e HoAth

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market
information and information about various financial instruments. The following methods
and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

S BT 2 G5 B Y 5
ESid

KR 2 SR EE R A
(EURIS SN RRe S
FH > HARHERA L
B -

HEEK
K5 2B P ERRR
BRI Heri R
AL TS A
e -

FAZEAMHG S
FAE SN A5 2 A
S EBEESRTE 3.1 P9 L
AR AT TR
RAF R 2 J7 A
[F] °

SR EK

B EBGRZ 2> o fE
REEEIEE 3.1 N IA T
HE ERHB LARE
SR 2 DA -

B EAEA
K5 2 5 PR
S e —ENEI 5
SRTHABA SO AT -

T3 {7 ER 5 R A

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from the balance
sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate terms, bear interest at
prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities
The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined by using the same approach as

those debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in
Note 3.1.

Loans and receivables

The fair value of loans and receivables is determined by using the same approach as those
debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note 3.1.

Deposits from customers
Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the balance sheet

date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

Fiva
BT EZ A nEfE
B 3.1 N ELA sefEsT
B EH LR R AR
PR Z 7R -

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same approach as those
debt instruments and certificates of deposit measured at fair value as described in Note
3.1.
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M ENEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEEMABHAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
3.2 EA AR SR 3.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
IHE (&
R DA b ECRR B B A 1 The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments
EMEENEmM AN T not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying values being
TRIELLA RHET R approximation of fair values.
Rl CEZIRAEMEMNL
foAE -
2017 2016
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
IREE ARfE WETHIE AE
BT BT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRLEE Financial assets
FAZIIH S Held-to-maturity 3,457,187 3,452,680 2,063,942 2,109,576
BRI ENGR Loans and
receivables 3,753,086 3,776,502 4,759,815 4,773,057
ERIGHE Financial liabilities
DB T EBsE S K Debt securities and
=5 certificates of
deposit in issue 6,781,208 6,686,616 1,095,937 1,104,033
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEEMABHAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

3.2 JEDAN SfEET BRI SR
IE (8

TRITREHBEH AR E
fER TR 2 AR EEY -

EREE
FrAZEFH %
B R EMTRK

SHAR
BTSRRI

27
Ei5A

EREE
FrAEFIIH %
B ERK

SRAL
B I RIFK

27
Ei5A

3.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with fair values

disclosed.

Financial assets
Held-to-maturity securities
Loans and receivables

Financial liabilities
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

Financial assets
Held-to-maturity securities
Loans and receivables

Financial liabilities
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue

162

2017
Bk FE% F=REk QHEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 3,452,680 - 3,452,680
- - 3,776,502 3,776,502
- 6,686,616 - 6,686,616

2016
gk £ @k =gk HaEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT T BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 2,109,576 - 2,109,576
- 1,238,137 3,534,920 4,773,057
- 1,104,033 - 1,104,033
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEEMABHIAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

3.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value
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The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market to
determine the fair value of non-financial instruments.

Investment properties and premises
The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises. All of the

Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year end. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited,
who have among their staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the locations and categories of properties being valued. The
Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on the valuation methods,
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at each
interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change in valuation methods during
the year.

(i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either the market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties or the
income capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable properties
and the subject properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the
entire measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC where the
property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales price, market rent and
capitalisation rate of comparable properties are generally observable either directly or
indirectly in these markets.
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
3. BEEMABHIAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
3.3 DA RMEEEIES R 3.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

IR (8

BBV EE () Investment properties and premises (continued)

(i) BEEE=ZEI AR (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
B ERVER
B R = g A The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 is determined using
WAREBEMEZ A either the market comparison approach or the income capitalisation approach, adjusted
DEEEH TSR for a premium or a discount specific to the features of the Group’s properties compared
BRESRBRAEBER to the comparable properties.
% BRI
GEESPAEIE R v E7/E

Z A PRI

B -

UTEBEENDES The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
EIEEW S EESE measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as follows:
=gz AEEY)
SEFTRRH S E T
ERERRNAEHE
EER
FHBREREARERG
fEETTE ERFUEERE pilit;: S Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
method unobservable inputs average to fair value
HAtr P [t (et vorAMEY/E 2 ska Ellsw aE7/E Finis -6.7% i ERE A A
Other U ABEAE Bl rE) (2016: -20%) The higher the premium,
properties Market Premium/(discount) the higher the fair value.
comparison on features of the
approach or property compared to PrEfE - A ERE -
income comparable properties The higher the discount,
capitalisation the lower the fair value.
approach
L E EEa Gl e W YE e Premium/(discount) on features of a property is determined after taken into account various
e F2isfE s (GBE) factors, such as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building age/condition,
VEE =1l YR YE e floor level, size, layout, with reference to the differences in features with comparable
FEINZE LR - properties.
WK% 2 i) -
s ~ N - B/
AR~ I ~ IR~ A
ST E
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEEMABHIAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

3.3 DA fEET BHIFE SR
IE (8

HEE

BBz AREREE
BT S R A A
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(A) AREIER

FEEREE
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KRB 2 IR B A ER
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“ @k MHER (2016
).

Precious metals

3.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining quoted market prices in
active market or market quote with certain adjustments.

(A) Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
- Premises
Other assets
- Precious metals

Non-financial assets
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
- Premises
Other assets
- Precious metals

2017
E—E% Bk F=Ek 4HET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETTE  OBMTRT  sMTRE  EMTR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 302,702 302,702
- 83,085 7,090,813 7,173,898
61,629 184,328 - 245,957
2016
E—lBal E Bk FE=EH HaEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT AT AT HERETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 383,830 383,830
- 326,756 6,378,855 6,705,611
52,338 178,273 - 230,611

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during

the year (2016: Nil).
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

3. BEEMABHIAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

3.3 DA fEET BHIFE SR
IE (8

(B) B=/BRavHE BT

BR2017HE1H1H
[hen
- gk
- REVERAAERAE S
e
- B LIRS
- HAr s
- FBEEES
e
WE
HA
A= &%
EERdbay
VST 72

2017412 H 31 H

#2017 ££ 12 A 31 HEEAW
IEE R E N T NG AU
TR BT
- EYES D EFE R

ey
- HibFEE 2P

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2017
Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Transfer in
Transfer into level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2017

Total unrealised gains for the year included in income
statement for non-financial assets held as at 31

December 2017

- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties

- Net gain from revaluation of premises
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3.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2017
JERIEE

Non-financial assets
I~ MR
B
Properties,
plant and
&Y% equipment
Investment BE
properties Premises
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
383,830 6,378,855
24,990 -
- 1,173
- 405,320
- (112,070)
2,502 6,549
- 5,970
- 251,400
(108,620) 108,620
- 44,996
302,702 7,090,813
24,990 -
- 1,173
24,990 1,173
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
3. BEEMABHIAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
3.3 PA REEHEHIES R 3.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
TIEHE (&
(B) SB=/84HE H BH) (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
(&

2016 F£1H1H

e
-
- REEYBEA R
B
- P
- Bl
- B
e
i

HAZE =4
LR =
EEgcipag
b S22 A

2016412 H 31 H

2016 4 12 F 31 HEFAHRY
FEEREEE NN ET AULE
ESGOEN sillbeaitat s
- EVSR A RERE S

Wrgs
- EflFEZFWE

At 1 January 2016
Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Transfer into level 3
Transfer out of level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2016

Total unrealised gains for the year included in income
statement for non-financial assets held as at 31
December 2016
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on

investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
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2016
e E

Non-financial assets
VI3 - 2aht B
Eedit
Properties,
plant and
¥ equipment
Investment EE
properties Premises
AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
414,736 6,462,986
29,340 -
- 5,271
- (66,680)
- (116,962)
- 96,419
- 217,000
- (251,400)
(59,082) 59,082
(1,164) (26,861)
383,830 6,378,855
29,340 -
- 5,271
29,340 5,271
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M EHENsE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
3. BEEMABHIAME 3. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
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AT G
b BIEERAA
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3.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in the
premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and comparable
properties during the year. Premium/(discount) on features is determined with
reference to differences in features between the subject properties and the
comparable properties recently transacted in the market. As comparable
properties that come from recent market transactions may be different in each
year, the premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and
comparable properties would change from year to year accordingly. As a result,
the significance of adjustments made to observable market inputs may vary and
lead to the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

4. Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is
prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital

adequacy ratio.

Direct credit substitutes
Transaction-related contingencies
Trade-related contingencies
Asset sales with recourse

Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without

prior notice

Other commitments with an original maturity of
- up to one year
- over one year

Credit risk-weighted amount

2017 2016
AT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

9,884,212 16,555,219
1,548,920 1,540,154
14,018,162 12,158,792
9,279,111 4,796,235
75,424,409 81,546,051
1,984,229 1,210,783
10,920,331 8,884,742
123,059,374 126,691,976
22,519,889 21,302,109

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity

characteristics of each type of contract.
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

5. Segmental reporting

(a) By operating segment
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The Group divides its business into four major segments, Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Investment.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking services.
Personal Banking serves individual customers while Corporate Banking deals with
non-individual customers. The Treasury segment is responsible for managing the capital,
liquidity, and the interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to
proprietary trades. It provides funds to other business segments and receives funds from
deposit taking activities of Personal Banking and Corporate Banking. These
inter-segment funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group. The assets and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted
to reflect the effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the profit and loss
information in relation to Treasury is not comparable to the assets and liabilities
information about Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by supporting units. Charges
are paid to this segment from other business segments based on market rates per
square foot for their occupation of the Group’s premises. The exchange difference
arising from capital of our subsidiary, NCB (China), which is recognised in its income
statement, is also included in this class.

“Others” refers to other group operations and mainly comprises of items related to the
Group as a whole and totally independent of the other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly include items directly
attributable to the segment. For management overheads, allocations are made on
reasonable bases.
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5. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) By operating segment (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

B ASRT EEGRAT
Personal Corporate BrEE% wE Hih INET BBHES fotsy
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
AT T AETIT  E¥TT AT AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Year ended 31 December
2017
Net interest
income/(expense)
- Bxternal 185703 4,382,164 1,426,532 - - 5,994,399 - 5,994,399
- Inter-segment 561,983 371,823 (933,806) - - ; - ;
747,686 4,753,987 492,726 - - 5,994,399 - 5,994,399
Net fee and commission
income/(expense) 609,787 940,842 111,432 62 (2,275) 1,659,848 - 1,659,848
Net trading gain/(loss) 32,292 66,564 (175,123) (67,914) 15 (144,166) - (144,166)
Net loss on financial
instruments designated
at fair value through profit
or loss - - (7,586) - - (7,586) - (7,586)
Net gain on other financial
assets - 89,898 29,017 - - 118,915 - 118,915
Other operating income/
(expense) 52 (2) - 138,207 12,627 150,884  (124,463) 26,421
Net operating income
before impairment
allowances 1,389,817 5,851,289 450,466 70,355 10,367 7,772,294  (124,463) 7,647,831
Net charge of impairment
allowances (30,231) (883,433) (6,740) - (57)  (920,461) - (920,461)
Net operating income 1,359,586 4,967,856 443,726 70,355 10,310 6,851,833 (124,463) 6,727,370
Operating expenses (984,575)  (1,647,214) (119,108)  (179,545) (97,090) (3,027,532) 124,463 (2,903,069)
Operating profit/(loss) 375,011 3,320,642 324,618 (209,190) (86,780) 3,824,301 - 3,824,301
Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties - - - 24,990 - 24,990 - 24,990
Net loss from disposal/
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment - - - (2,033) - (2,033) - (2,033)
Profit/(loss) before
taxation 375,011 3,320,642 324,618 (86,233) (86,780) 3,847,258 - 3,847,258
At 31 December 2017
ASSETS
Segment assets 43,562,710 193,081,724 190,352,353 7,733,493 331,858 435,062,138 435,062,138
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 108,471,515 231,197,241 41,049,841 3,053 2,251,408 382,973,058 382,973,058
Year ended 31 December
2017
Other information
Capital expenditure - - - 77,427 - 77,427 - 77,427
Depreciation 8,386 4,637 462 179,533 6,537 199,555 - 199,555
Amortisation of securities - - 396,526 - - 396,526 - 396,526

171



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

MR (8

5 nE#wmE (&)

() EEME (8

BZE 2016512 H31H

FFREUA (SZHD

- Sk

RIS B R A
(324D
PR Mg (51D
AN
Atz &R TE
SR

Fofth xR 2

HARSCEBA
TRHUBE R ERT 2R E
BBRA

TR (S P R 1

TREERA

LEEF, (BH)
e LUE ANk ki
P

i EAEYSE - S
st 2 s

BRIRATEF . (5D

#2016 4£ 12 H 31 H
BiE

TrEREE

R

srEbE

BZE 2016412 H31H

HAE
BN
e

5. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) By operating segment (continued)

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

{8 AT ST
Personal Corporate ME#E% BE Hitr /et Py =i GE
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
BT BT T BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Year ended 31 December
2016
Net interest
income/(expense)
- External 307,501 3,009,601 1,217,707 4,534,809 4,534,809
- Inter-segment 558,112 173,881 (731,993)
865,613 3,183,482 485,714 4,534,809 4,534,809
Net fee and commission
income/(expense) 774,215 784,771 14,072 98 (1,085) 1,572,071 1,572,071
Net trading gain/(loss) 37,113 50,907 15,899 32,097 (1,321) 134,695 134,695
Net loss on financial
instruments designated
at fair value through profit
or loss (7,708) (7,708) (7,708)
Net gain on other financial
assets 100,770 92,002 192,772 192,772
Other operating income 128 3 138,393 12,785 151,309 (124,250) 27,059
Net operating income
before impairment
allowances 1,677,069 4,119,933 599,979 170,588 10,379 6,577,948 (124,250) 6,453,698
Net charge of impairment
allowances (99,177) (371,271) (15,627) (486,075) (486,075)
Net operating income 1,577,892 3,748,662 584,352 170,588 10,379 6,091,873 (124,250) 5,967,623
Operating expenses (1,013,932) (1,140,060) (279,794) (184,470) (162,571) (2,780,827) 124,250 (2,656,577)
Operating profit/(loss) 563,960 2,608,602 304,558 (13,882) (152,192) 3,311,046 3,311,046
Net gain from fair value
adjustments on
investment properties 29,340 29,340 29,340
Net gain from disposal/
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment 4,136 4,136 4,136
Profit/(loss) before
taxation 563,960 2,608,602 304,558 19,594 (152,192) 3,344,522 3,344,522
At 31 December 2016
ASSETS
Segment assets 39,800,947 153,986,068 147,613,051 7,353,037 179,606 348,932,709 348,932,709
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 96,078,909 173,305,873 38,952,505 4,123 1,906,331 310,247,741 310,247,741
Year ended 31 December
2016
Other information
Capital expenditure - - 211,821 211,821 211,821
Depreciation 11,848 6,016 390 184,466 (2,803) 199,917 199,917
Amortisation of securities (8,708) (8,708) (8,708)
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

5. Segmental reporting (continued)

(b) By geographical area

SRS R ELIR L

SYFTRTIE S48 -

s
Tt
HoAttr

&t

T
Pt

it

i
At

it

Hong Kong
Mainland of China
Others

Total

Hong Kong
Mainland of China

Total

Hong Kong
Mainland of China

Total

The following information is presented based on the principal places of operations of the
subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank, on the locations of the branches responsible for
reporting the results or booking the assets:

2017 2016
PREUBE R HRT o TREHUBRMARERRD
ZRZERA ERERRT ZIFEA Bt
Net operating b=yl Net operating ezl
income before Profit income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BETT BT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4,744,698 3,035,488 3,949,714 2,582,188
2,903,133 811,770 2,451,494 705,399
- - 52,490 56,935
7,647,831 3,847,258 6,453,698 3,344,522
2017
WARAEARIE
Contingent
BEE Y=t E k=3 liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
AT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
260,457,002 223,835,403 6,923,364 49,902,361
174,605,136 159,137,655 895,593 73,157,013
435,062,138 382,973,058 7,818,957 123,059,374
2016
EARAERIRKE
Contingent
Kk E ek IEREEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT T BT T BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
213,536,801 185,711,520 6,584,651 40,740,121
135,395,908 124,536,221 814,200 85,951,855
348,932,709 310,247,741 7,398,851 126,691,976

173



5 NCB #:f#i% 441
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6. BEiRHEE 6. Assets pledged as security

#2017 212 H 31 H » As at 31 December 2017, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$5,258,501,000
N =4 B E B (2016: HK$3,140,124,000 ) were secured by assets deposited with central depositories to
5,258,501,000 Jr (2016 facilitate settlement operations. In addition, the liabilites of the Group amounting to
4 ke 3,140,124,000 HK$3,208,148,000 (2016: HK$889,830,000) were secured by debt securities and bills
7T ) BLAERUA PR related to sale and repurchase arrangements. The amount of assets pledged by the Group
LR LMERGEE > BE(E to secure these liabilites was HK$8,579,860,000 (2016: HK$4,058,932,000) mainly
HEHH o hoh o AREEE R included in “Trading assets”, “Financial investments” and “Trade bills”.

B 1% B T s Y (R 558 2%
B SRR B R
3,208,148,000 jr: (2016
40 ¥ 889,830,000
7T » REEERIEEA
(R 1 < B e
% 8,579,860,000 1( 2016
0 M 4,058,932,000
7o) WL TR GME
EIA—:EJ N rﬁﬁﬁQﬁJ )54 r%\j
S, IR -
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

7. FEEMEALRE 7. Significant related party transactions
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General information of the parent companies:

The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings Co., Limited (“Cinda
Financial Holdings”), the Group’s ultimate holding company is China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (“China Cinda”) which is a state-owned financial enterprise
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") by the Ministry of Finance (the
“MOF”) and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Hong Kong Stock Exchange").

The Group’s former immediate holding company is Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
(“BOCHK?"), which disposed all its interests in the Group to Cinda Financial Holdings, a
indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of China Cinda. The transaction was completed and the
share transfer of the Group effected on 30 May 2016 (the “effective date”).
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
7. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies

(i) The Group’s immediate holding company is Cinda Financial Holdings which is in

turn controlled by China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited (“Cinda Hong
Kong”). China Cinda is the controlling entity of Cinda Hong Kong and its major
shareholder and de facto controller is MOF, which is one of the ministries under
the State Council of the PRC Government, primarily responsible for state fiscal
revenue and expenditures, and taxation policies.

China Cinda has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The majority of transactions with China Cinda arises from deposits from
customers. As at 31 December 2017, the related aggregate amount of the Group
was HK$27,487,883,000 (31 December 2016: HK$28,854,437,000). The
aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising from these transactions with
China Cinda for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$342,197,000 ( from
effective date to 31 December 2016: HK$27,845,296).
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7. FEERE A LS 7. Significant related party transactions (continued)
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(a) ERAE REAE () Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
P H Z HoAh AN T controlled by the parent companies (continued)
TS (&)
KE TS T The majority of transactions with Cinda Hong Kong arises from deposits from
WITHIRZ ZFEEE customers. As at 31 December 2017, the related aggregate amount of the Group
BFE#& - 7 2017 was HK$6,378,915,000 (31 December 2016: HK$18,219,000). The aggregate
FI12H31H K amount of expenses of the Group arising from these transactions with Cinda
B H A B OEYEEE Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$67,064,000 ( from
By P2 L effective date to 31 December 2016: HK$3,882,000).

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent
companies arises from financial investments. As at 31 December 2017, the
related aggregate amount of the Group was HK$4,859,435,000 (31 December
2016: HK$3,696,629,000). The aggregate amount of income of the Group arising
from these transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies
for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$178,719,000 ( from effective date
to 31 December 2016: HK$11,731,000).
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IBEHRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

7. FEERE A LS 7. Significant related party transactions (continued)
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(a) ERAE REAE () Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
el H 5% controlled by the parent companies (continued)
TS (&)
KER oy BLRE)N &322 The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the parent
il 2 HAL A EHIRS companies arises from advances to customers and deposits from customers. As
GREEERNE at 31 December 2017, the related aggregate amount of the Group was
FAFK e 1A 2017 4 HK$1,213,388,000 (31 December 2016: HK$732,259,000) and
12 A 31 H > & HK$15,632,964,000 (31 December 2016: HK$6,171,802,000) respectively. The
[ A R SR TE YA EE 4y aggregate amount of income and expenses of the Group arising from these
Aok & W transactions with other companies controlled by the parent companies for the

period ended 31 December 2017 were HK$89,895,000 ( from effective date to 31
December 2016: HK$22,336,000) and HK$136,259,000 ( from effective date to
31 December 2016: HK$82,699,000) respectively.

(i) The Group’s former immediate holding company is BOCHK, which is in turn

controlled by Bank of China Limited (“BOC”") (collectively as “BOC Group”).
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin") is the controlling entity of BOC,
and it is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation (“CIC")
which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in foreign currency investment
management.
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7. FEERE A LS 7. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(a) ERAE REAE () Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
el H 5% controlled by the parent companies (continued)
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Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The majority of transactions with BOC Group arises from money market
activities. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of the Group arising
from these transactions with BOC Group from 1 January 2016 to effective date
were HK$15,087,000 and HK$100,307,000 respectively.

From 1 January 2016 to effective date, the Group sold certain premises to
BOCHK with selling price amounting to HK$187,012,000. The gain from
disposal of premises were approximately HK$1,105,000. The transactions were
entered on normal commercial terms.

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled by the former
parent companies arises from deposits from customers. The aggregate amount
of expenses arising from these transactions from 1 January 2016 to effective
date was HK$39,799,000.
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WRsERENE (8) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

7. FEEREALRE 7. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(a) ERAE REAE () Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
el H 5% controlled by the parent companies (continued)

TR 5 (8D

2 S 17320 A Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies and the other
HAM R E] fe BELS companies controlled by the parent companies are not considered material.
H] P HA A H]
HELTHIZ 5l A
o

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal
REEE TEIEH ¥ course of business which include loans, investment securities and money market
B RETT transactions.

RITEBRS - &
FEEEH BRI
R -
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
7. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
state controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the MOF and the control of State Council of the
PRC Government through CIC and Central Huijin, which also directly or indirectly
controls a significant number of entities through its government authorities, agencies,
affiliates and other state controlled entities. The Group enters into banking
transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
entities in the normal course of business at commercial terms.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

- lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;

- inter-bank balance taking and placing;

- sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state
controlled entities;

- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;

- provision of fiduciary activities; and

- purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunications and postage services.
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7. FEERMEALRES 7. Significant related party transactions (continued)
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) EEmEAR
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277,885,000 7T.) °

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

(c) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including Directors and Senior Management. The Group accepts deposits from and
grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary course
of business. During both the current and prior years, no material transaction was
conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its holding companies, as
well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December is
detailed as follows:

2017 2016
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits 64,785 37,322
Post-employment benefits 4,378 2,958
69,163 40,280

(d) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate sums of amounts due from subsidiaries and
amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during
the normal course of business at commercial terms are HK$297,746,000 (2016:
HK$777,815,000) and HK$185,478,000 (2016: HK$277,885,000) respectively.

182



5 NCB #:f#i% 441

BRI (8D
8. ERMERME

Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

8. International claims

LU o3t 92 B A BRI
RTRGt 2 R ERHE
FBEERE R I 4R - BUFE
IR S B TR
AR 12 LIS 5 3
T AR R AR

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the

oyt HEERIERERTA &
W 2 BS R (R AR Sh
WE(RRE - EEREZIEIRA
T B 2 3 T AT
A > A RS =
RN ZFTAEH, - 5 S
AT MBHMAT o R
T GRS 2oL 8T 2 BT
e -

country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office
is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the country where its head
office is located.

SR [ P {1 2% e 8
H T RS 1 5
P REQE%E 10%E0 DL

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of
the aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:

ZARMET ¢
2017
FESRITRANMERE
Non-bank private sector
FESRAT
SRR FeRl
BT Non-bank AN
$RIT Official financial Non-financial wast
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
AEETIT AEETIT BT AETIT AEETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
o R P A, Mainland of China 49,317,277 9,534,250 212,539 38,767,290 97,831,356
T Hong Kong 2,629,913 443,739 4,739,648 35,321,601 43,134,901
2016
FESRITRANIRRE
Non-bank private sector
JRIRfT j
RS Bl
BT Non-bank FANRE
ST Official financial  Non-financial Yzt
Banks sector institutions _ private sector Total
AT T AT T ARTT AT T AT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
o [5] A H Mainland of China 48,470,053 1,820,537 216,198 31,209,791 81,716,579
Tk Hong Kong 2,368,664 14,781 3,929,130 34,635,628 40,948,203
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Notes to the Financial statements (continued)

9. Non-bank Mainland exposures

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank and its banking subsidiaries.

Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

Local governments, local
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures

Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above

Other entities of local governments not
reported in item 2 above

PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland

Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures

Total

Total assets after provision

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets
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2017
BEER BEAE
S TR RIMNY
WETEE AR AR
Items in On-balance Off-balance  4EJEfE&RE
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1 47,506,686 5,511,590 53,018,276
2 21,617,740 4,703,027 26,320,767
3 74,038,354 15,195,181 89,233,535
4 4,936,451 3,398 4,939,849
5 253,003 - 253,003
6 13,218,282 1,983,472 15,201,754
7 5,131,429 13,906 5,145,335
8 166,701,945 27,410,574 194,112,519
9 445,101,340
10 37.45%
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IBEHRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial statements (continued)
9. JESRITHYAtESSE&IE 9. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

(&)
2016

HEAR HEAME

S FAHY I

HFIEE JE\F AR JE\F AR
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance 408 iR g R
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PR ~ RO ERREAY Central government, central

i - HiN@A AT REE government-owned entities and their

3 subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 28,854,624 1,044,272 29,898,896
HFERF ~ #OFBUFEEA Y Local governments, local

T~ HiftB AT NEE government-owned entities and their

3 subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 13,366,609 3,841,924 17,208,533
hEEEAE RS EM{EE  PRC nationals residing in Mainland

MEEMEIHRS ~ HHEA or other entities incorporated in

HREEMNE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 61,933,453 27,467,692 89,401,145
FafEfE Fultss—IEhoEy  Other entities of central government
J5F PR Y LAt AR not reported in item 1 above 4 4,213,992 - 4,213,992
RNEFEE LIt — 15 58y Other entities of local governments not
IRFA LAt AR reported in item 2 above 5 11,889 - 11,889

F R EEREINE REEREESME  PRC nationals residing outside
fetsrs - EAREEANR Mainland or entities incorporated
EE outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 10,974,129 2,089,606 13,063,735
H<s 55 FmEEEEE  Other counterparties where the
HEAR s ESRTT A A S exposures are considered to be

HEIE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 4,902,964 - 4,902,964
4EEt Total 8 124,257,660 34,443,494 158,701,154
HIRAE G 18 1Y & FE AR E Total assets after provision 9 356,683,339

LEABENNER K On-balance sheet exposures as
IS EMEEHE I percentage of total assets 10 34.84%
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